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ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 2015
Strategic report

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their Strategic report for the year ended
31 December 2015

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The parent company’s ('the Company’) principal activity s that of a holding company for the
Archant group of companies (‘the Group’)

The Group’s principal actmvity durning the year continued to be primarily UK based and comprise a
single trade of publishing content, predominantly in print, online, through mobile technologres,
Iive events, television and printing

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The business continues to operate in an increasingly fragmented media landscape, its localness
and understanding of its audiences and customers, together with its trusted relationship with
these groups, remains one of 1ts key strengths

The Group converted its basis of accounting to International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’)
for the year ended 31 December 2015, following impending changes to UK reporting standards
Reconciliations between the different bases of accounting are provided on pages 62 to 71 the
2015 Annual report

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The key financial and non-financial performance indicators for the Group are

As reported Like-for-like

2015 2014 2015 2014
Total revenue £115.5m | £1218m| £1146m| £f1168m
Advertising and other revenue {inc digital} £88.7m £93 2m £88.5m £915m
Curculation revenue £26 8m £28 6m £26 1Tm £253m
Subscriptions (% of magazine copy sales) 48 4% 51 0% 47.7% 48 9%
Dugital revenue £7.9m £82m £7 9m £8 Om
Underlying operating costs* £105.9m| £1138m | £105.0m| £1093m
Underlying operating profit* £9 6m £8 Om £9.5m £7 5m
Net cash £12 7m £27m
Web and mobile traffic (MUVs} 8.2m 72m

*excludes amortisation, impairment and non-recurring 1items

REVENUE

On a like-for-lIike basis, the reduction in ongoing revenues was 1 9% which we believe 1s ahead
of market environment On an as-reported basis, revenue decreased from £121 8min 2014
1o £115 5mn 2015, a reduction of 5 2% before allowang for in year disposal of a portfolio of
magazines which accounted for £5 Om of revenue in 2014

ADVERTISING AND OTHER REVENUE

Advertising and other revenue fell by 3 4% on a like-for-like basis (4 8% as reported) This fall in
like-for-ike revenues was caused by a reduction in advertising in both newspapers (5 2%} and
magazines (6 7%) On a positive note other revenue (iIncuding external prnting and events, but
excluding digital) grew by 4 6% in 2015 to £13 6m (2014 £13 Om) driven by significant growth
in events (30 7% to £1 7m)
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Strategic report

STRATEGIC REPORT continued

CIRCULATION AND SUBSCRIPTIONS

On a hike-for-bke basis newspaper arculation revenue grew 2 6% to £18 9m after several years
of decline with price nses offsetting circulation volume declines and like-for-like magazine
circulation revenue grew 3 8% to £7 2m Magazine subscription copies as a percentage of copy
sales on a [ke-for-like basis dropped from 48 9% to 47 7% following improvements in trade
sales performance

DIGITAL ACTIVITY

Revenue from like-for-like online activities fell by 0 6% to £7 9m, mainly driven by revenue from
content display In the latter half of the year, digital recrutment advertising was also a challenge
Maonthly unigue wisitors to our fixed and maobile sites increased by 14 5%, with 30 5m Archant
fixed and mobile site pages viewed on average each month

OPERATING COSTS

The directors continue to aim to balance investment with good cost management Underlying
operating costs fell by 7 0% to £105 9m (3 9% on a like-for-like basis) with employment costs
down by 1 7% and pninting and paper costs falling by 15 0% compared to the prior year

OPERATING PROFIT
Underlying operating profit before amortisation, imparment and non-recurring items increased
by 20 5% to £9 6m

NON-RECURRING ITEMS INCLUDING AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
Non-recurring net costs feli from £10 2m to £4 6m Thss included amortisation of intangible fixed
assets of £3 2m (2014 £4 3m) and restructuring costs of £0 5m (2014 £2 Om) Exceptional
dvidend income of £0 7m (2014 £2 1m) was received from PA Group Limited

The Group 1s required to review the carrying value of its intangible assets annually, to determine
whether events or changes in cwrcumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable The carrying value 1s assessed using forecast cash flows, discounted in line with the
Group’s cost of capital A total charge of £0 2m (2014 £6 2m) has been recorded against cash
generating units where the value in use or recoverable amount was lower than therr carrying
value

PENSIONS

The Group operates both defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes The assets and
labiities of the defined benefit scheme are valued by an independent actuary at the end of
each financial year for accounting purposes The overall deficit in the pension fund has fallen
from £33 Om to £31 4m duning 2015, due to employer contributions of £3 2m and an actuaral
valuation gain of £0 6m, offset by a £2 2m charge to the income statement for service costs,
adrminustration and finanaing The Group continues to look at options to mitigate our exposures In
this area Further details are prowided in the nisk and uncertainties section of the Strategic report

TAXATION

The Group has retained a provision of £14 9m n respect of disputed tax matters dating back
to 2003 The Group has continued to actively provide information to support its position, has
consulted with legal counsel, and continued to engage with HMRC throughout the year
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

NET DEBT AND CASH FLOW

The Group continues to be strongly cash generative and at 31 December 2015 the Group had
net cash of £12 7m (2014 £2 7m), having generaied £ 10 Om of cash during the year The Group
maintains sufficient debt headroom to ensure 1t can meet 1ts cash habilities, including those in
respect of tax The Group is operating well within its existing banking covenants

NET ASSETS

Net assets increased in the year by £5 5m from £12 6m on 1 January 2015 (as restated) The
profit for the year was £3 1m, which was transferred to reserves Other movements on reserves
included an increase of £0 6m ansing from a reduction in the actuanal valuation of the pension
deficit under 1AS 19, an increase of £2 2m from the revaluation of freehold property and a
reduction of £1 0m from the fair values of histed and unlisted investments Net assets at the end
of the year therefore increased to £18 1m

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

There have not been any significant changes in the Group's principal activity in the year under
review The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes in the
Group’s activity tn the next year

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There is an ongoing process for the identification, evaluation and management of the significant
risks faced by the Group The management and mitigation of any adverse impact of the key nsks
identified are

Risk Potential impact I Mitigating actions
FINANCE RISK
The Group manages Its If covenants are The Group’s banking facilities were
hquidity nisk through not met, the Group  renewed in July 2015 and expire In
committed short-term and may be forced to June 2019 The Group' forecasts
long-term finance facilities renegotiate Its and expectations demonistrate that
at a level to meet the finance facilities It can operate within the terms of
Group's anticipated funding  wath its lenders these facilities, including its financial
requirements These finance covenants Further, any cash
facilities require certan outflows that may arise as a result
financial covenants to be of outstanding tax matters can be
met including profit and accommodated within the current
cash covenants finance facliies Comphance with
facilities 1s monitored cn a monthly
basis and reported quarterly to banks
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STRATEGIC REPORT wontinued

Risk | Potential impact | Mitigating actions
LIFESTYLE CHANGES AFFECTING AUDIENCES

Circulation volumes for print ~ Circulations for print - The Group ams to provide high quahty
titles are under pressure due  titles do not actieve  editonal content in all its products to
to changes to lifestyles and in  target, resulting in provide appropriate quality and value

the multimedia landscape loss of circulation for ts audience to encourage repeat
revenues The purchases |t promotes loyalty schemes
reduced audience and subscriptions to encourage

could alsolead toa  increased frequency of purchase

loss of advertising The Group has continued to develop

revenue and improve news websites, including
talloring to mobile devices, increasing
frequency of updates and implementing
apps Cover price increases may be
an opportunity to mitigate arculation
volume losses

CHANGES IN MARKETING EXPENDITURE
The changing media needs Advertising revenues  The Group 1s continuing to invest n

of our advertisers are putting  do not achieve the quality, structure and traiming of
pressure on print advertising  target Its sales teams and to create a more
revenues customer-centric organisation,

to ensure that customer revenue
opportunities are optimised
Investment IS continuing in digital
brands, and in strengthening the
Group's fixed web and mobile
presence New online and mobile
technology revenue sources are
continuously sought The Group
reviews economic, Industry and other
relevant data to evaluate future
revenue trends and to put appropriate
plans in place
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STRATEG|C REPORT continued

Risk I Potential impact I Mitigating actions

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME DEFICIT
Regulatory changes, stock An adverse

market fluctuations or movement In any of
changes in other core the key assumptions
assumptions including may increase the

interest rates, inflaton and defigt in the defined
longevity may significantly benefit pension
impact the funding level of scheme, resulting
the defined benefit pension  1n a requirement
scheme, In turn IMpacting for higher cash
Group contribution levels contnibutions

The pension deficit 1s carefully
menitored and there are regular
reviews with the trustees of the
scheme The Group and trustees
take appropnate actions to mitigate
the growth in pension hiabiliies
including a regular review of funding
level, investment strategy, benefits
provided and the cost of those
benefits There are a number of
factors which are outside the
Group’s control, including interest
rates, inflation rates, life expectancy
and regulatory change

The ability to execute and Key staff leaving
implement the Group's could lead to a
strategic and business plans  loss of leadership,
relies on the appropriate industry knowledge

Group structure, culture and  and expenence

key people Salary and bonus  and customer and
levels for sermor managers supplier refationships
could fall below market fevels

and key staff leave

The ability to recruit quality

staff may also be impaired

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AND RETENTION OF KEY PEOPLE

The Group has a succession plan

in place and reviews It regularly
together with market rates for
salaries The Group promotes a
culture of continuous improvement
The Group has & nigerous
recruitment process, including
recruitment from outside traditional
publishing areas, and Is actively
engaged In staff development

and traiming

www archant ¢o uk




ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Strategic report

STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Risk

I Potential impact LMltlgatmg actions

TAXATION

The Group may not prevail
n 1ts current dispute with
HMRC, datng back to 2003

Unsuccessful
conclusion of the
ongoing dispute may
require settlement

in cash of the full
amount of tax and
Interest provided

The Group 15 working closely with
its legal and tax advisors to resolve
these matters with HMRC The
Group can accommodate any cash
outflows that may anse as a result of
these tax matters within its current
bank faclities The Group continues
to generate cash which reduces the
Impact to the Group of any eventual
tax payment on the Group’s ability
to fund growth and make dividend
payments

BUSINESS CONTINUITY

The Group 1s dependent

on technology in particular
computer networks and
software A substantial
failure for a sustamned period
may potentially adversely
affect revenues or profits

Lack of robust
systems or slow
imptementation of
any recovery plan
rmight impact the
Group’s ability to
delver products
which could
significantly impact
earnings

Business continuity plans are
reviewed annually The Group has
full rmurroring of core systems across
two sites and uses cloud based
services where appropriate The
Group also maintains adequate
Business Interruption msurance cover
in the event of financial loss as a
result of fallures in key systems

By order of the Board,

BG McCarthy
Director

8 March 2018
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report for the year ended 31 December 2015

DIRECTORS
The following directors held office during the
year

5 C Alleyne OBE
STBax

S C Copeman
JL Henry

J A E Hustler

B G McCarthy
DIMHIN

P J C Troughton CBE
M J Walsh

{resigned 31 March 2015)

DIVIDENDS
The directors recommend a final dvidend of
5p per share In respect of 2015

Assurming approval of the recommended
final dividend, the cost of dmdends for 2015
ts £694,000

The proposed final dvidend wili, f approved,
be paid on 15 April 2016 to shareholders
appearing on the register of members as at
24 March 2016

GOING CONCERN
The Group's business activities, together
with the factors likely to affect its future
development are descnibed in the Strategic
report on pages4to 9

The Group has considerable financial
resources and facliies available, together
with secure long-term contracts with principal
suppliers The Group's budgeting and
forecasting processes include the preparation
of forecast cash flows, based on expected
trading results, the Group's overall working
capital requirements and other non trading

cash items, including capital expenditure,
interest, debt and taxation These forecasts
indicate that the Group has an adequate
level of faclities to meet its forecast cash
requirements, and as a consequence the
directors believe that the Group is well placed
to manage Its business nsks successfully
despite the current uncertain economic
outlook

After making enquiries, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group has adequate resources 1o
continue in operational extstence for the
foreseeable future Accordingly the directors
have continued to adopt the going concern
basis in prepanng the accompanying financial
statermnents

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has granted an indemnity to
one or more of its directors against liability
In respect of proceedings brought by third
parties, subject to the condrtions set out in
section 234 of the Companes Act 2006
Such qualify:ng third party indemnity provision
remains in force as at the date of approving
the Directors’ report

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES
STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing
the Strategic report, Directors’ report and
the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year
Under the law the directors have elected to
prepare the finanaal statements 1n accordarce
with International Financial Reporting

10
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT coontinued

Standards (IFRS} Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affarrs
of the Group and the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing those financial statements the
directors are required to

* select suitable accounting pohicies and then
apply them consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent, and

s state whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping
proper accountmg records that are sufficient to
show and explain the Group’s and Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonahle
accuracy at any tme the financial position of
the Group and Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Compamies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safequarding the assets of the
Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

TO AUDITORS

The directors who were members of the board
at the time of approving this report are listed
on page 10 Having made enquines of fellow
directors and of the Company's auditors, each
of these directors confirm that

* 10 the best of therr knowledge and belief,
there 1s no information relevant to the
preparation of this report of which the
Company's auditors are unaware and

e they have taken all the steps a director
might reascnably be expected to have
taken to be aware of relevant audit
information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that
information

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The 2016 Annual General Meeting will be
held at noon on 12 April 2016 at The Forum,
Millennium Plain, Norwich, NR2 1TF

By order of the Board,
BG McCarthy
Director

8 March 2016
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Auditor's report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARCHANT LIMITED

(Company number 4126997)

We have audited the financial statements of
Archant Limited for the year ended 31 December
2015 which comprise the Consolidated income
statement, the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the Consolidated and
Company statements of financial position,
the Consolidated and Company statements
of changes in equity, the Consolidated and
Company statements of cash flows and
the related Consolidated notes 1 to 35 and
Company notes C1 to C17 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied
In their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS} as adopted by the European Union
and, as regards the Parent Company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, 1in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we rmight state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them
In an auditor’s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audit werk, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors’
responsibilities statement set out on page
10 the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements
in accordance with apphcable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are
free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This Includes an
assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's and
the Parent Company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financal
statements In addition, we read all the
financal and non-financial information 1n the
Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and to identify
any information that 1s apparently matenally
incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit If we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements
or Inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report

12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ARCHANT LIMITED continued

OPINION ON FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

In our opinion

¢ the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s and of the
Parent Company's affairs as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

» the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRS
as adopted by the European Union,

+ the Parent Company financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,
and

¢ the financal statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER
PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES

ACT 2006

In our opinien the information given in the
Strategic repeort and the Directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE

REQUIRED TO REPCRT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect af the

following matters where the Compantes Act

2006 requires us to report to you if, 1n our

opINIon

¢ adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the Parent Company, or returns
adeguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

« the Parent Company financial statements
are not i agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specfied by law are not
made, or

+ we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit

Robert Forsyth
Senior statutory auditor
for and on behalf of
Ernst & Young LLP
Statutory Auditor
London

8 March 2016

www archant co uk
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Notas £000 £000

REVENUE 3 115,533 121,823
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 3 4,557 (4,008)
Finance income 7 714 2,110
Finance costs 8 (716) (887)
Finance expense on pension assetshabilities 35 (1,140) (478)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 3,415 (3,263)
Income tax expense 9 (289) {1,107)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 3,126 {4,370)
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the Company 3,126 (4,370)
Non-controlling interests - -

3,126 (4,370)

NON-RECURRING ITEMS - UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Profit/(loss) before taxation 3,415 (3,263)
Adjusted for

Amortisation of intangible assets 4 3,249 4,312
Impairment of intangible assets, investments and loans 4 582 6,194
Credrt to iIncome statement for prior year revaluation defiat 4 {257) (796)
Restructuring and other exceptional costs 4 9214 2,266
Losses less profits on disposals 4 559 -
Special dividends from PA Group Limited 4 (703) {2,109)
Accrued interest on potential corporation tax habilities 4 302 303
UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8,061 6,907
Statutory earn:ngsf{loss) per share Basic 12 225 (315)
Diluted 12 2138 (315)
Underlying earnings per share Basic 12 48.3 341

The revenue and profit/(loss) presented above are derived from continuing operations

14 www archant co uk
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note £000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the year 3,126 {4,370)
Other comprehensive income:
Items to be reclassified to the Consolidated income statement
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (57) (14)
Net unreahsed deficit on available-for-sale financial assets {976} 3,266
Income tax effect 6 3
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to the
Consolidated income statement in subsequent periods (1.027) 3,255
Items not to be reclassified to the Consolidated income
statement in subsequent periods:
Actuarial gains/{losses) recognised on defined benefit pension scheme 35 595 (22,601)
Movement on deferred tax asset associated with pension scheme defict {(119) 4,870
Change in deferred tax asset on pension scheme deficit ansing
from a change in the rate of corporation tax {627) (4386)
Deferred tax on carrying value of intangtble assets 1,072 1,461
Revaluation of freehold property 2,556 631
Income tax effect {318) {229)
Net other comprehensive iIncome not to be reclassified
to the Consolidated income statement in subsequent periods 3,159 (16,304)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 5.258 (17,419}
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company 5,258 (17,419)
Non-controlling interests - -
5.258 (17,419)
www archant co uk 15
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 December 2015

31 December 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
As restated As restated
Notes £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 13 20,940 24,251 36,824
Property, plant and equipment 14 24,258 23,864 25,320
Available-for-sale financial assets 15 5,001 6,067 2,802
Deferred tax asset 24 2,478 2,096 -
Cther recervables 18 184 135 322
52,951 56,413 65,268
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventonies 17 800 1,161 1,253
Trade and other receivables 18 14,533 14,467 16,631
Cash and cash equivalents 19 13,619 3,585 3,777
28,952 19,213 21,661
HELD FOR SALE ASSETS 20 300 2,500 -
TOTAL ASSETS 82,203 78,126 86,929
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings and overdrafts 22 941 911 890
Trade and other payables 21 21,314 21,095 21,181
Current tax habilities 9,627 9,735 10,007
Provisions 23 47 178 312
31,929 31,919 32,390
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 21 204 178 297
Borrowings 22 - - 9,645
Provisions 23 635 422 328
Deferred tax hability 24 - - 2,448
Defined benefit pension liability 35 31,369 32,959 11,71
32,208 33,559 24,489
TOTAL LIABILITIES 64,137 65,478 56,879
NET ASSETS 18,066 12,648 30,050
EQUITY
Called up share capital 25 2,879 2,877 2,875
Share premium account 26 2,647 2,639 2,601
Other reserves 27 10,630 9,407 5.866
Retained earnings 28 1,910 (2,275) 18,678
TOTAL EQUITY 18,066 12,648 30,050
S Bax BG McCarthy 8 March 2016
Chairman Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
EQUITY for the year ended 31 December 2015

Share Share Other | Retained Total
capital | premium | reserves | earnings equity
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2014 2,875 2,631 5,866 18,678 30,050
Loss for the year - - - (4,370) (4,370)
Other comprehensive income:
Actuartal losses on retirement benefit scheme 35 - - - | (22,601)| (22,601)
Tax on retirement benefit scheme - - - 4,434 4,434
Deferred tax on intangible assets - - - 1,461 1,461
Revaluation of freehold property - - 402 - 402
Fair value of histed and unlisted investments - - 3,269 - 3,269
Foreign currency translation - - (14) - (14)
Other comprehensive income - - 3,657 | (16,708) | (13,049)
Total comprehensive income - - 3,657 | (21,076) | (17,419)
Purchase of own shares held by employee trusts - - (3) - (3)
Sale of own shares held by employee trusts - - 10 - 10
Issue of share capital 2 8 - - 10
Release aganst revaluation deficit in income statement - - (86) 86 -
Depreciation transfer for freehold property - - (37 37 -
At 31 December 2014 2,877 2,639 9,407 (2,275) 12,648
Profit for the year - - - 3,126 3,126
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains on retirement benefit scheme 35 - - - 595 595
Tax on retirement benefit scheme - - - (746) (746)
Deferred tax on intangible assets - - - 1,072 1,072
Revaluation of freehold property - - 2,238 - 2,238
Fair value of histed and unlisted investments - - (970) - (970)
Foreign currency translation - - (57) - (57)
Other comprehensive income - - 1,21 921 2,132
Total comprehensive income - - 1,211 4,047 5,258
Purchase of own shares held by employee trusts - - (5) - (5)
Issue of share capital 2 8 - - 10
Credrt to equity for share-based payment - - 155 - 155
Depreciation transfer for freehold property - - (138) 138 -
At 31 December 2015 2,879 2,647 10,630 1,910 18,066

www archant co uk
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note £000 £000
Cash flow from operating activities 30 11,608 9,679
Income tax paid (764) (254)
Net cash generated from operating activities 10,844 9,425
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of intangible assets {102) (483)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,232) (847)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 80 4
Sale of intangible assets 328 -
Dividends received on unlisted investments 704 2,110
Purchase of unlisted investments and convertible loan (418) -
Sale of fixed asset investments - 1
Interest receved 11 -
Net cash (used)/generated in investing activities (629) 785
Cash flows from financing activities:
Interest paid (216) (410)
Issue of ordinary share capital 10 10
sale of ordinary shares by the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) - 10
Repayment of loan under bank revolving credit facility - (10,000)
Banking facilities financing costs - (20)
Purchase of own shares (5) (3)
Net cash used in financing activities (211) {10,423)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from activities 10,004 (213)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 2,674 2,887
Claosing cash and cash equivalents 12,678 2,674
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2015

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS

2015 2014

Note £000 £000

Increasef{decrease) in cash 10,004 (213)

Cash flow from decrease in loans - 10,000

Loan issue costs - 30

Cash flow 10,004 9,817
Amortisation of loan 1ssue costs (193)
Transfer loan issue costs to debtors 18 - {192)

Change in net funds 10,004 9,432
Net funds/(debt) at 1 January 2,674 (6,758)

Net funds at 31 December 12,678 2,674

MOVEMENTS IN NET FUNDS

At 31 Cash Other At 31

December flow non cash | December

2014 changes 2015

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 3,585 10,034 - 13,619
EBT overdraft (911) (30) - 941)
Loan 1ssue costs 192 102 (203) 91
Transfer loan i1ssue costs to debtors 18 (192) {102) 203 (31
Bank loans and overdrafts {811) (30} - (941)
Net funds 2,674 10,004 - 12,678
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of
Archant Limited and its subsidiaries {collectively
the Group) for the year ended 31 December
2015 were authorised for i1ssue in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 25
February 2016 Archant Limited {the Company
or the parent) 15 an unhsted imited company
incorporated and dormiciled in the United
Kingdom Its registered office 1s located at
Prospect House, Rouen Road, Norwich NR1 1RE

The Group’s principal activity during the year
continued to be pnmanly UK based and
compnsed a single trade of publishing content,
predominantly in print, online, through mobile
technologies, iive events, television and
pnnting

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financal statements
have been prepared in accordance with
International Finanoal Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS
IC) mterpretations, as adopted by the European
Union and with those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS The disclosures required by IFRS 1
‘Frst-time Adoption of International Finanaal
Reporting Standards’ concerning the transion
from UK GAAP to IFRS are given in Appendix 1
The date of transition to IFRS1s 1 January 2014
Details of standards and interpretations not yet
apphied and the principal accounting polictes
adopted by the Group are set out below

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation
of land and buildings, available-for-sale
financial assets, and financtal assets and
financial habilities (including dernvative
instruments} at farr value through profit or
loss The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRS requires
the use of estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabiities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the
year Although these estimates are based on

ranagement’s best knowledge of the amount,
event or actions, actual results ultimately may
differ from those estimates

These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated

The Appendix on pages 62 to 71 includes an
opening IFRS statement of financial posiuon
at 1 January 2014 and disclosures that explain
how the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS
has affected the Group’'s previously reported
finanaal position, financial perfermance and
cash flows

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
NOT YET APPLIED

The following standards and interpretations
have an effective date after the date of these
financial statements but the Group has not
early adopted them and plans to adopt them
from the effective dates adopted by the EU

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1
January 2018)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(effective 1 January 2017)

The Group 15 currently assessing the full impact
of these new standards
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Notes to the consolidated finanaal statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group financial statements conschdate
the financial statements of the Company and
all its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31
December each year

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Subsidiary undertakings are all entities
including structured entities aver which the
Group has control The Group controls an
entity when the Group Is exposed to, or has
nghts to, vanable returns from its involvement
with that entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity
Subsidiary undertakings are fully consolidated
from the date on which control Is transferred
to the Group They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary undertaking 1s the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group The
consideration transferred ncludes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement
Identifiable assets acquired and habiities and
contingent habiliies assumed In a business
combination are measured imtially at therr
farr values at the acquisition date The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acguisition basis,
either at farr value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s rdenufiable net
assets

balances and
are eliminated on

Intra-group transactions,
unrealised gains
consolidation

The accounting policies of subsidary
undertakings are consistent with the policies
adopted by the Group

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Availlable-for-sale financial assets comprise
hsted and unhsted equity investments Equity
investments classified as available-for-sale are
those that are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
mnitially at fair value on the dates of acquisition
After inttial measurement, avallable-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value with unreahsed gains or losses
recognised in other comprehensive income
and credited in the avaifable-for-sale reserve
until the nvestment 1s derecogmised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss Is
recognised n other operating income, or the
investment 1s determined to be imparred,
when the cumulative loss 1s reclassified from
the avallable-for-sale reserve to other costs in
the Consolidated income statement Dividend
income from available-for-sale financial assets
Is recognised when the shareholders’ nghts to
receive payment have been established and
reported as finance income

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Newspaper and magazine titles
Newspaper and magazine titles acquired
prior to 31 December 1997 were classified
as goodwill and wnitten off directly to
reserves

Newspaper and magazine titles acquired
separately are measured on intal
recognition at cost The cost of newspaper
and magazine titles acquired in a business
combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition Newspaper and magazine trtles
have finite useful lives, and following initial
recogmtion, newspaper and magazine
titles are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses Internally generated
newspaper and magazine titles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not

www archant co uk
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POLICIES continued

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Newspaper and magazine titles continued
capitalised and the related expenditure
15 reflected in profit or loss in the penod
in which the expenditure 1s incurred

Newspaper and magazine ttles are
amortised on a straight ine basis over their
useful economic lives, and assessed for
impairment whenever there 1s an indication
that the titles may be impaired The
amortisation period and the amortisation
method for newspaper and magazine titles
are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting penod Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation peried or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes
In accounting estimates

Gains or losses ansing from derecognition
of newspaper and magazine titles are
measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the
asset 1s derecognised

{b) Goodwll
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of
the net identifrable assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition
and n accordance with [FRS 3 ‘Business
combinaticns’ 1s not amortised

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions prior to
31 December 1997 was set off directly
against reserves and was not reinstated on
implementation of FRS 10

()

The Group has elected to take advantage
of the exemption under [FRS 1 not to
restate all business combinations prior to
1 January 2014, and accordingly the value
of goodwill reported under UK GAAP at
1 January 2014 is frozen

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash generating
units (CGUs) and s tested for impairment
annually at the year end, or at any other time
that there 15 an indication of impairment,
and 1s carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses Impairment losses
are charged to the Consolidated income
statement These impairment calculations
require the use of estimates and significant
management judgement A description
of the key assurnptions and sensitivities is
included in Note 13

If a subsidiary, associate or business 15
subsequently sold or closed, any goodwill
ansing on acquisition that was wntten off
directly to reserves 15 taken into account
in determining the profit or loss on sale or
closure

Computer software
Computer software licences are caprtalised
at cost including the cost to bnng into use

Computer software licences are amortised
on a straight hne basis over the shorter of
their useful econorme lives and five years
Computer software licences are assessed
for impairment whenever there 15 an
indication that the software hicence may
be impaired

Computer software 1s carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment

22
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(d) Website and other digital

development costs

Expenditure incurred i research 15
recognised as an expense Iin the penod
in which 1t is incurred Website and other
digital development costs are capitalised
only if the asset created can be identified,
it 15 probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefits and the
development cost can be measured reliably
Such assets are amortised on a straight fine
basis over their useful economic lives of no
more than three years Where no asset can
be recognised, development expenditure
is charged to the Consolidated income
statement in the period In which 1t 1s
incurred

Capitalised website and other digital
development costs are assessed for
impairment whenever there 1s an indication
that the assets may be imparred

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
imparrment losses Cost comprises the
aggregate amount paid and the farr value of
any other consideration given to acquire the
asset and includes costs directly attnbutable
to making the asset capable of operating as
intended

Land and buildings are recogrused inrtially at
deemed cost on transition to IFRS, as permitted
under IFRS 1, and at cost for additions post
transition, and thereafter carried at fair value
less depreciation and impairment charged
subsequent to the date of the revaluation Farr
value 15 based on periodic valuations by an
external independent valuer and 1s determined
from market-based evidence by appraisal
Valuations are performed frequently enough
to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset
does not differ matenally from 1ts carrying
amount

Any revaluation surplus 15 recognised n other
comprehensive income and credited to the
revaluation reserve in equity except to the
extent that it reverses a decrease n the carrying
value of the same asset previously recognised
in profit or loss, in which case the sncrease
15 recognised in profit or loss A revaluation
defiat s recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent of any existing surplus in respect of
that asset in the revaluation reserve in other
comprehensive income

An annual transfer i1s made from the
revaluation reserve 1o retained earnings for
the difference between deprecation based
on the carrying amount of the revalued assets
and that based on the revalued assets’ original
cost Additionally, accumulated deprecation
as at the revaluation date is eliminated agamnst
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset Upon disposal any revaluation
reserve relating to the particular asset being
sald s transferred to retained earnings

Depreciation 15 provided on all property, plant
and equipment, ather than land, on a straight
line basis over its expected useful life as follows

Freehold bulldings 35 years

Leasehold buidings
—short  Period of lease

Plant and machinery Between 5 and 15 years

Other equipment

and vehicles Between 3 and 7 years

The carrying values of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment if
events ar changes In arcumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable, and are
written down immediately to their recoverable
amount Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed annually and where adjustments are
required these are made prospectively

www archant co uk
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

continued
An item of property, plant and equipment 1s
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset Any gain or
loss anising on the derecogrution of the asset is
included in the Consolidated income statement
in the penod of derecognition

LEASES
Assets acquired under finance leases are
capitalised at the inception of the lease and
depreciated over the shorter of their respective
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets

Rentals paid under operating leases are
charged to income on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease

Lease premiums and inducements are recognised
In current and non-current assets or habilities as
appropnate, and amortised or released on a
strarght line basis over the lease term

Sub-lease income 15 recagnised as Income on
a straight ine basis over the sub-lease term,
less allowances for situations where recovery
1s doubtful

INVENTORIES

Inventores are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value Cost includes all costs
incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition

Raw materials, consumables and goods for
resale are stated at purchase cost on a first-in,
first-out basis

TAXATION

The charge for corporation tax 15 based on
the results for the year as adjusted for items
which are not taxed or are disallowed It 13
calculated using tax rates in legislatton that has
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method in respect
of taxable temporary differences ansing from
differences between the tax bases of assets
and habihties and therr carrying amounts in
the financial statements Deferred tax ansing
from the imitial recognition of an asset or
lability i a transaction, other than a business
combinaton, that at the time of the transaction
affects netther accounting nor taxable profit or
loss, 1s not recogrised In princaiple, deferred
tax habilities are recogmised for all taxable
terporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when
the asset 1s realised or the hability Is settled
Deferred tax 15 charged or credited in the
Consolidated income statement, except
when 1t relates to items credited or charged
to other comprehensive income, in which case
the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in other
comprehensive Income

Deferred iIncome tax assets and habilities are
offset when there s a legally enforceable nght
to offset current tax assets against current tax
habilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabihties relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authonty on erther
the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there 15 an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, and it 1s probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation Prowisions are
measured at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date, and are discounted to
present value where the effect 1s material

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but
are disclosed unless an outflow of resources 15
remote Contingent assets are not recognised,
but are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefit 1s probable

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ftems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the pnmary
economic environment in which the entity
operates ('the functional currency’) The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in sterling (£), which 1s the
Group's presentation currency

{b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevaling at the dates of
the transactions Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
Consolidated income statement Foreign
exchange gains and losses that relate to
cash and cash equivalents and all other
foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented 1n the Consohdated income
statement

(c) Group companies
The resuits and financal position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows
{a) assets and labilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that balance sheet,
{b) Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates, and
(¢) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables do not carry any Interest
They are recorded initially at far value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
for situations where recovery 1s doubtful
Such allowances are based on an indvidual
assessment of each recewvable Generally, this
results in therr recognition at nominal value less
any allowance for any doubtful debts

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are not Interest bearing
They are recorded imitially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
Generally, this results in their recognition at
nominal value

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

€ash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand and short-term deposits with
imtial matunities of three months or less Cash
and cash equivalents are shown net of bank
overdrafts where the Group have the nght of
net settlement

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and cash equivalents as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

BORROWINGS

Barrowings are nitially recogmised at
farr value net of transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
Loan arrangement costs in respect of debt
are capitalised and amortised over the life
of the debt at a constant rate Finance costs
are charged to the Consolidated income
statement, based on the effective interest rate
of the associated borrowings

PENSIONS

The defined benefit pension scheme operated
by the Group requires contributions to be made
to separately admmistered funds The scheme
was closed to new members in February 1998
from which tme membership of a defined
contribution plan has been avarlable

The cost of prowiding benefits under the
defined benefit scheme is determined using the
projected unit credit method, which attributes
entitternent to benefits to the current period
(to determine current service cost) and to the
current and prior periods (to determine the
present value of defined benefit obligations)
and Is based on actuanal advice Past service
costs are recogrused in the Consolidated
income statement on a straight line basis
over the vesting period or immediately If the
benefits have vested When a settlement or
curtaiiment occur the change n the present
value of the scheme liabibhties and the far
value of the scheme assets reflects the gan or
loss which is recogrised in the Consclidated
Income statement Losses are measured at the
date that the employer becomes demonstrably
committed to the transaction and gains when
all parties whose consent I1s required are
irrevocably committed to the transaction

The interest cost of the defined benefit
obligations represents the change in present
value of the scheme obligations resulting
from the passage of time, and Is determined
by applying the discount rate to the opening

present value of the benefit obligation, taking
into account material changes in the abligation
during the year The interest income on scheme
assets 1s a component of the return on scheme
assets and 1s determined by multiplying the
fair value of scheme assets at the beginning
of the year by the discount rate, adjusted for
the effect on the fair value of scheme assets of
contributions received and benefits paid during
the year The difference between the interest
income on scheme assets and the interest
cost on scheme obligations Is recognised 1n
the Consolidated income statement as other
finance Income or expense

Actuanial gains and losses are recagnised
in full in the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income i the penod In which
they occur Any difference between the
expected return on scheme assets and that
actually achieved and any differences that
arise from experience or assumption changes
are also charged through the Consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income

The defined benefit pension asset or hability in
the Consolidated statement of financal posiion
comprises the present value of the defined
benefit obligation (using a discount rate based
on hugh quality corporate bonds) less any past
service cost not yet recognised and less the
fair value of scheme assets out of which the
obligations are to be settled directly Fair value
15 based on market price information and in the
case of quoted securities 1s the published bd
price The value of a net defined benefit pension
asset 15 imited to the amount that may be
recovered either through reduced contributions
or agreed refunds from the scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
pension scheme, which 1s open to eligible
employees The Group's contnbutions are
charged to the Consolidated income statement
i the year in which they are payable
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

PENSIONS continued
Addrtionally, the Group contributes to a small
number of perscnal pension plans for certain
employees who are not participants in one of
the Group’s pension schemes

The Group also makes provision for the capital
value of unfunded pensions to certain current
and former employees in accordance with
independent actuarial advice

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s actwities are primarly UK based
and comprise a single trade of publishing
content, predominantly in print, online,
through mobile technologies, live events,
television and printing

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration recewved or recewvable for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities Revenue 1s
shown net of value added tax, trade discounts
and anticipated returns after elminating sales
within the Group

The Group recognises revenue when the

amount of revenue can be reliably measured,

it 1s probable that future economic benefits

wili flow to the entity and when specific

cntena have been met for each of the Group’s

activities as follows

= Advertising and crculation revenues are
recogmised on publication or display

* Subscription revenues are recognised over
the periods to which the subscriptions refate

s Prnnting and contract publishing revenues
are recognised on delivery of the
publication

s Other revenues are recognised when the
goods or services have been supplied or
provided to the customer, and there 15 a
contractual obligation for the customer to
pay for those goods or services

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -
EQUITY-SETTLED TRANSACTIONS

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees 15 measured by reference to the far
value at the date at which they are granted
using an appropriate valuation model

That cost 1s recognised in staff costs (Note
5}, together with a corresponding increase in
other capital reserves in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service
condrtions are fulfilled The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting peniod
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity Instruments that will
uitimately vest The statement of profit or loss
expense or credit for a penod represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised
at the beginning and end of that period

NON-RECURRING ITEMS
The directors believe that the underlying profit
and earnings per share measures provide
additional useful information for shareholders
on the underlying performance of the business
These measures are consistent with how
underlying business performance 1s measured
internally The underlying profit before tax
measure 1S not a recognised profit measure
under IFRS and may not be directly comparable
with adjusted profit measures used by other
companies The adjustments made to reported
profit before tax are to exclude the following

+ profits and losses on the disposal of properties
and intangible assets,

* amortisation of intangible assets,

* impairment of intangible assets, Investments
and loans,

* restructuring costs,

« costs relating to strategy changes that are
not considered normal operating costs of the
underlying business, and

» other significant and ane-off items of income
and expense that distort underlying trading
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POLICIES continued

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other relevant factors, induding
expectations of future events that are beheved
to be reasonable under the arcumstances

The preparation of the financial statements
requires management to make estimates
and assumptions concerning the future
The resulting accounting estimates will, by
defintion, be likely to differ from the related
actual results The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below

Pensions

Pension accounting requires certain
assumptions to be made in order to value our
obligations and to determine the charges to be
made to the Consolidated income staterment
These figures are particularly sensitive to
assumptions for discount rates, mortality,
inflation rates and expected long-term rates of
return on assets Details of the assumptions are
given in Note 35

Provisions

Prowisions recognised at the balance sheet date
are detailed in Note 23 and include amounts
for dilapidations and onerous property lease
costs

Although provisions and liabihities are reviewed
on a regular basis and adjusted to reflect
management’s best current estimates the
judgemental nature of these itemns means that
future amounts settled may be different from
those provided

impairment

The Group i1s required to test whether assets
i use in operations have suffered any
impairment The recoverable amounts of
cash generating units have been determined
based on the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use The calculation of value
In use requires the estimation of future cash
flows expected to anse from the continumng
operation of the cash generating unit and the
selection of a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value Gwven the degree
of subjectmity Involved, actual outcomes could
vary significantly from these estimates

Income tax liabitties and accrued interest
on income tax liabilities

The Group has provided £14 9m for income
tax payable and accrued interest in respect of
disputed tax matters dating back to 2003

Although prowisions and labilities are reviewed
on a regular basis and adjusted to reflect
management’s best current estimates the
judgemental nature of these tems means that
the future amounts settled, and the timing of
those payments, may be different from those
provided

The Group 15 also in correspondence with
HM Revenue & Customs concerning the
appropnate classification of other disputed
corporation tax habilities between current tax
and deferred tax The Group has fully prowded
for these labilities, although the classification
between current tax and deferred tax, once
agreed, may be different from those provided
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3 OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

2015 2014
Notes £000 £000
Advertising revenue 67,181 72,050
Circulation revenue 26,852 28,625
Other revenues 21,500 21,148
Revenue from continuing operations 115,533 121,823
Underlying operating costs
Raw matenals and consumables 8,822 9,948
Staff costs 5 50,890 51,802
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 3,282 3,729
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 30 (2)
Other operating expenses 42,905 48,373
Underlying operating costs 105,929 113,855
Underlying operating profit 9,604 7,968
Non-recurring items
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangible assets 4 3,249 4,312
Impairment of intangible assets, investments and loans 4 582 6,194
Property revaluation increase set against prior year deficit 4 {257) (796)
Restructuring and other exceptional costs 4 914 2,266
Losses fess profits on disposals 4 559 -
Non-recurring 1items 5,047 11,976
Operating profit/(loss) 4,557 (4,008}

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
The following 1tems have been included in arrving at profit(loss) before taxation

2015 2014

Note £000 £000

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 8,822 9,948

Trade receivables impairment 18 143 24
Operating lease rentals payable

* property 994 966

» plant and equipment 1,924 2,050

Sub-lease income
* property 50 48
Auditors’ remuneration:

e Audit - parent company and consolidation 40 25
e Audit - subsidiaries 68 66
* Tax comphiance 78 39
Net foreign exchange differences 8 30
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4

NON-RECURRING ITEMS

2015 2014
Notes £000 £000
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 {32,249) (4,312)
impairment of intangtble assets, investments and loans
Impairment of intangible assets 13 {164) (6,194)
Provision against unlisted investment and convertible foan {418) -
Property revaluation increase set against prior year deficit 257 796
Restructuring and cther exceptional costs
Restructuring costs (492) {1,978)
Property portfolio rationalisation (309} -
Newspaper Socety pension scheme deficit - (254)
Professional fees incurred in relation
to potential corporation tax liabilities (113) (34)
Losses less profits on disposals
Losses less profits on disposals of intangible
fixed assets 20 (599) -
Profit on disposal of freehold property 40 -
Recognised in operating profit (5,047) (11,976)
Special dividend from PA Group Limited 7 703 2,109
Accrued interest on potential corparation tax habilities 8 {302) (303)
Total non-recurring items {4,646) (10,170)
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4 NON-RECURRING ITEMS continued

RESTRUCTURING COSTS
The restructuring costs anse from redundancies and related property exit and relocation costs
resulting from a number of INitiatives to iImprove the productivity of the operating divisions

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO RATIONALISATION

The Group has decided to divest its freehold properties in lpswich and Iiford, and has incurred costs
in relation to the exits from, and future disposals of these properties, and further costs in sourcing
and acquinng replacement rented accommaodation

NEWSPAPER SOCIETY PENSION SCHEME DEFICIT

In Aprl 2014 the Newspaper Society ('NS’}, the regicnal press trade association, incorporated
as The Newspaper Organisation Limited ('NOL') a private company limited by guarantee All of
the members of NS, including the Group, committed to fund the NS Pension and Life Assurance
Scheme (‘NS PLAS’} defiat and recovery plan prior to the transfer of all NS's assets and liabilities to
NOL The Group has a commitment to make payments of £26,000 per annum until the earlier of
when NOL has, throughout a six month peniod, net unencumbered assets equal to or greater than
the estimated debt payable on a winding up of NS PLAS and 2038 The Group’s total commitment
of £254,000 has been discounted using the Group's weighted average cost of capital

PROFESSIONAL FEES INCURRED IN RELATION

TO POTENTIAL CORPORATION TAX LIABILITIES

These costs relate to the long standing tax dispute with HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC)
dating back to 2003 As noted in the 2014 financal statements, the Group has provided for
the maximum corporation tax habilities that may be incurred as a result of a challenge by HMRC
in respect of licensing agreements The Group has also provided an aggregate of £4,964,000
(2014 £4,662,000) being the accrued interest on these potential corporation tax iabilities

All non-recurning tems recognised in the Consehdated incomne statement anise from the continuing
operations of the Group
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5

STAFF COSTS

Average monthly number of staff 2015 2014
Publishing, printing and media activities 1552 1,656
Group head office 21 26
1,573 1,682

Full ime equivalents 1,459 1,569
2015 2014

Pay and benefits Note £000 £000
Wages and salaries 42,172 43,610
Social security costs 4,061 4,287
QOther pension costs 4,325 3,873
Share-based payments 6 332 32
50,890 51,802

S e ather parson st n repec o

KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION
Included above are the following amounts in respect of key management compensation

2015 2014

Pay and benefits Note £000 £000
Wages and salaries 1,707 1,494
Performance related bonuses 866 2N
Other benefits 152 160
Compensation for loss of office 3?7 503
Soqial security costs 267 261
Cther pension costs 131 134
Share-based payments 6 332 32
3,502 2,855
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5 STAFF COSTS continued

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

2015 2014
£000 £000
Aggregate remuneration in respect of quahfying services 1,280 1,386
Company contributions to defined contribution pension
schemes 29 29
1.309 1,415
In respect of the highest paid director
2015 2014
£000 £000
I Aggregate remuneration 661 603
2015 2014
Number Number
Number of directors whao received shares in respect
af qualifying services Nl Nil
Number of options awarded to directors under the 2011 LTIP 245,000 -
Number of directors who exercised share options Nil Nil
Number of directors accruing benefits under defined benefit
pension schemes Nil Nil
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates a Long-term Incentive Plan, a Jont Share Ownership Plan and a Share
incentive Plan all of which may result in eligible employees of the Group receiving part of therr
remuneration in the form of shares in the Company {'equity-settled transactions’)

The expense recogrused In wages and salaries for share-based payments in respect of employee
services recerved dunng the year ended 31 December 2015 15 £332,000 (2014 £32,000)

2011 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (2011 LTIP)
The 2011 LTIP was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 13 Apni 2011

Up to and including 31 December 2014, the only options awarded under the 2011 LTIP were
made In 2011 The performance conditions were not met, and all outstanding options lapsed
during 2014

On 23 July 2015, certain employees were granted Approved Share Options and Unapproved
Options over shares in Archant Limited, the final vesting of which 1s subject to continued
employment within the Group and satisfaction of the performance conditions

For the options awarded 1n 2015, the proportion that vests will be determined by the growth in
the Group's operating profit calculated on a like-for-like basss before exceptional items, measured
aganst targets set at the beginning of the plan cydle

The Approved Share Options and Unapproved Options can be exercised between the third and
tenth anniversary of grant The Remuneration Committee may award a partiapant a conditional
discretionary Bonus Award, payable in cash, whose maximum gross amount is equivalent to the
value of the Approved Share Qptions subject to the Bonus Award on the Grant Date

Share options i1ssued under the 2011 LTIP

Approved share options Unapproved share options
Number of | Weighted average Number of | Weighted average
shares exercise price £ shares exercise price £
Options granted during
the year 210,000 100 290,000 000
Outstanding at
31 December 2015 210,000 100 250,000 000

JOINT SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN (JSOP)

A JSOP was established on 25 September 2014  Eligible employees are offered the opportunity
to acquire shares held jointly with the trustee of an employee benefit trust operated by the
Company The employee Interest in each share 1s equal to any value above a hurdle set at the
time of entering the JSOP agreement, the remaining value in each share at any time belongs to
the trustee

In October 2014 the Company entered into a JSOP agreement with one participant and EFG
Trust Company Limited (the ‘Trustee’} using 150,000 shares already held by the Trustee All shares
vested and were released in 2014 The hurdle was set at £1 20, and an additional award was
made to the participant of up to £180,000 payable in cash, or at the discretion of the Company
in shares, on the sale of the jointly-owned shares
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6 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN (SIP)

The SIP ts an HMRC approved scheme Ehgible employees may be invited from time to time to
purchase shares in the Company, and may be awarded further shares, either conditional on the
purchase of shares and/or unconditionally All SIP shares are held by the 5IP Trustee on behalf of
the partiipating employees

No SIP awards have been granted since 2008

7 FINANCE INCOME

2015 2014
£000 £000

Income from available-for-sale investments
Special dividend from PA Group Limited 703 2,109
Other dwvidends from listed and unlisted investments - 1
Interest received 11 -
714 2,110

8 FINANCE COSTS

2015 2014
Note £000 £600
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 211 391
Amortisation of loan issue costs 203 193
Accrued interest on potential corporation tax habihities 4 302 303
716 887
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a) Analysis of tax charge

2015 2014
Notes £000 £000
Current tax;
UK corporation tax on profit/(loss) for the year 646 115
Tax under/(over) provided In prior years " (133)
Current tax on profit/{loss) before tax 657 (18)
Deferred tax:
Ongination and reversal of timing differences 332 478
Ongination and reversal of pension scheme timing differences 199 314
Adjustments in respect of prior years (929) 340
Adjustrment arising from change in rate of corporation tax 30 )
Total deferred tax 24 (368) 1,125
Total tax charge 9(b) 289 1,107

Analysis of tax charged/{credited) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

2015 2014

£000 £000
Deferred tax:
Tax on pension scheme defiat (119) 4,434
Tax on pension scheme deficit ansing on change in rate (627) -
Unrealised gain on available-for-sale financal assets 6 3
Freehold property revaluations (482) (229)
Freehold property revaluations arising on change in rate 164 -
Carrying values of intangible assets 842 1,461
Carrying values of intangible assets anising on change 1n rate 230 -
Total deferred tax 14 5,669
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE continued

(b) Tax reconciliation
The tax assessed on the profit/(loss) for the year is lower (2014 higher) than the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK of 20 25% {2014 21 5%) The differences are reconaled below

2015 2014

Note £000 £000
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before tax 3,415 (3,263)
Profit/loss) from ordinary activities multiphed by 691 (702)
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
Adjustments to current tax in respect of prior years 1 (133)
Adjustments to deferred tax in respect of prior years {929) 340
Restatement of deferred tax balances for reduction in 30 )
the corparation tax rate
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 229 m
Non taxable income {142) (454)
Non taxable credits {46) (189)
Ineligible amortisation of goodwill and intangible assets 367 578
Ineligible impairment of intangible assets 33 1,049
Other permanent differences (74) {96)
Trading losses and loan relationship deficits not utihised - 507
Adjustment to accounting profits and losses for capital gains 119 -
Other - a3
Total tax charge 9(a) 289 1,107

{c) Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Finance (No 2} Act 2015 enacted on 18 November 2015 reduced the rate of UK Corporation
Tax to 19% from 1 Apnl 2017 and to 18% from 1 Apni 2020 Accordingly, deferred tax has been
calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset 1s realised or liability
s settled in these financial statements

The above changes to the rate of corporation tax will impact the amount of future cash tax
payments to be made by the Group

10 (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
MEMBERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

As permitted by Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006, Archant Limited has not presented
Its own Income statement or statement of comprehensive expense The loss dealt with in the
financial statements of the parent company was £3,602,000 (2014 profit £8,784,000)

1 DISTRIBUTIONS MADE AND PROPOSED

Nc dividends were paid in erther year and no dividends were accrued as liabilities at erther year end

A resolution to pay a final dvidend of 5p per ordinary share in respect of 2015 will be proposed
to the Annual General Meeting If approved, the total dwidend paid will be £694,000
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12

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE

The calculation of earnings per ordinary share 1s based on earnings after tax and the weighted
average number of shares in 1ssue during the year

Diluted earnings per share 15 based on ordinary shares calculated in the table below No dilutive

potential ordinary shares are included in 2014 as they do not increase loss per share

2015 2014
‘000 ‘000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 14,392 14,378
Woeighted average number of ordinary shares excluded from
EPS calculation (522) {521)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
EPS calculation 13,870 13,857
Dilutive potential ordinary shares
Options granted under the 2011 LTIP S00 -
14,370 13,857

As in previous years, underlying earnings per share have also been disclosed as the directors
consider that this alternative measure gives a more comparable indication of the Group’s

underlying trading performance

The underlying earnings per share has been calculated by using the profitsflosses) attributable

to shareholders, adjusted as follows

2015 2015 2014 2014
Pence per Pence per
£000 share £000 share
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders/
earnings/(loss) per share 3,126 22.5 (4,370} (315)
Restructuring and other exceptional costs 1,332 96 2,266 163
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,249 234 4,312 311
Impairment of goodwill and other
intangible assets 164 1.2 6,194 447
Revaluation surpluses credited to
Income statement (257) {18) {796) (5 8)
Exceptional losses less profits on disposals
of magazine titles and freehold property 559 4.0 - -
Exceptional income from investments {703) {5.1) {2,109 {152)
Tax impact of exceptional items {509) 3.7) (1,071) 77
Exceptional interest accrual on potential
corporation tax habihities 302 22 303 22
Exceptional prior year deferred tax credits (564) {4.0) - -
Deferred tax adjustment arising on
change n rate of corporation tax - (3) -
Underlying earnings per share 6,699 438 3 4,726 341

38

www archant co uk




ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Notes to the consolidated finanaal statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill | Newspaper | Magazine | Software Total
titles titles
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2014 7.300 112,489 59,150 6,441 185,380
Acquisitions - - - 483 483
Transfer to assets held for sale - - (8,792) - (8,792)
Disposals - - - (579) (579}
At 31 December 2014 7,300 112,489 50,358 6,345 176,492
Acquisitions - - - 102 102
At 31 December 2015 7,300 | 112,489 50,358 6,447 176,594
Amortisation.
At 1 January 2014 5,580 97,660 40,370 4,946 148,556
Prowvided duning the year - 1,194 2,224 894 4,312
Impairment 828 1,619 3,697 50 6,194
Transfer to assets held for sale - - (6,292) - (6,292)
Disposals - - - {529) (529}
At 31 December 2014 6,408 100,473 39,999 5,361 152,241
Provided during the year - 1,093 1,545 611 3,249
Impairment - - - 164 164
At 31 December 2015 6,408 | 101,566 41,544 6,136 | 155,654
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 892 10,923 8,814 311 20,940
At 31 December 2014 892 12,016 10,359 984 24,251
At 1 January 2014 1,720 14,829 18,780 1,495 36,824

The Group’'s bank overdrafts and borrowings under the revolving credit facility are secured by a
fixed and floating charge over the undertaking and all property and assets present and future,
including goodwall, book debts, uncalled capital, buldings, fixtures, fixed plant and machinery
(Note 22)

All amortisation and impairment charges in the year have been charged through operating costs
in the Consclidated income statement

The carrying values of all intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at the end of the first full
year following acquisition and in ather peniods If events or changes in crcumnstances indicate the
carrying values may not be recoverabte
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13

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS continued

IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

In accordance with IAS 36 ‘impairment of Assets’ the carrying values of newspaper utles,
magazine titles, goodwill and other intangible assets have been compared to their recoverable
amounts, represented by their value in use to the Group

Newspaper ttles, magazine titles, goodwill and other intangible assets are allocated, at
acquisition, to the Cash Generating Units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that
business combination The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value 1n use
calculations The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the growth
rates, expected changes to revenues and direct costs during the period, and the discount rates
applied These assumptions have been reviewed during the year in hght of the current economic
environment The value in use calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections based on the
financial budgets approved by the Board for 2016 The growth rates for cash flows beyond 2016
assume an annual RPl increase only and no underlying growth Management estimates discount
rates using post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money,
long-term expected debt/equity ratios and the risks specific to the CGUs The cost of caprtal and
therefare the discount rate applied to future cash flows was 10 2% (2014 10 2%)

The Group prepares discounted cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by management and extrapolates those cash flows to perpeturty based on an
estimated annual growth rate of 2 5% The present value of the cash flows I1s then compared to
the carrying value of the asset

Given the current difficult trading climate, and the anticipated timing and extent of the recovery,
certain of the Group's website assets have been imparred

Carrying value Value in use | Impairment charge
before impairment
£000 £000 £000
Website 164 Nil 164

The sensitivity of the assumptions underlying the valuation methodology has been assessed for
the following variables

Sensitivity scenarios Result

Growth rate of 1% after 20 years (rather than 2 5%) No additional impairment required
Discount rate of 12% (rather than 10 2%) No additional impairment required
Zero growth rate from 2016 onwards No additional impairment required
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold | Leasehold Plant and Other Assets In Total
property butldings | machinery | equrpment course of
& vehicles | construction
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation:
At 1 January 2014 13,249 762 35,854 14,012 351 64,228
Additions - - 97 1,020 (270) 847
Revaluation 1,125 - - - - 1,125
Disposals - (89} (2) (2,182) - (2,273)
At 31 December 2014 14,374 673 35,949 12,850 81 63,927
Additions - 67 in 888 106 1,232
Revaluation 2,565 - - - - 2,565
Transfer to assets held for sale (300) - - - - {300)
Disposals (54) (397) - (649) - (1,100}
At 31 December 2015 16,585 343 36,120 13,089 187 66,324
Depreciation.
At 1 January 2014 13 716 26,840 11,339 - 38,908
Charge for year 304 32 2,195 1,198 - 3,729
Revaluation (303) - - - - (303)
Disposals - (89) (1) (2,181) - (2,271)
At 31 December 2014 14 659 29,034 10,356 - 40,063
Charge for year 268 21 1,792 1,201 - 3,282
Revaluation (249) - - - (249)
Disposals (14) (397) - {619) - (1,030)
At 31 December 2015 19 283 30,826 10,938 - 42,066
Net book value:
At 31 December 2015 16,566 60 5,294 2,151 187 24,258
At 31 December 2014 14,360 14 6,915 2,494 81 23,864
At 1 January 2014 13,236 46 9,014 2,673 351 25,320

The Group’s bank overdrafis and barrowings under the revolving credit facility are secured by a fixed and floating
charge over the undertaking and all property and assets present and future, including goodwill, book debts,

uncalled capwal, buildings, fixtures, fixed plant and machinery (Note 22}

An independent valuation of the Group’s freehold property was performed by valuers to determine the fair value
of the freehold property as at 31 December 2013, 31 December 2014 and 30 November 2015 The revaluation
surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes was credited to other comprehensive income and 1s shown in
other reserves in shareholders’ equity
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14

15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

The cost or valuation of land and buildings at 31 December 2015 comprises:

Freehold Short Leasehold

£000 £000

At valuation 16,585 -
At cost - 343
16,585 343

The historical cost of freehold and leasehold land and buildings 15 as follows:

Freehold Leasehold
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost 14,882 15,851 343 673
Aggregate depreciation (5,041) (5,594) (283) (659)
Net carrying amount 9,841 10,257 60 14

Depreciation for the year on the Group's freehold properties has been based on their revalued
amounts Based on cost the consohdated charge would have been lower by £16,000(2014 £22,000)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Listed Unlisted Total

Note £000 £000 £000
Fair value:
At 1 January 2014 12 2,790 2,802
Fair value adjustment through
Consolidated income statement (1) - (1)
Fair value adjustment through other
comprehensive income (2) 3,268 3,266
At 31 December 2014 9 6,058 6,067
Additions 33 - 418 418
Fair value adjustment through
Consolidated income statement 33 - (418) {418)
Fair value adjustment through other
comprehensive income - (976) (976)
At 31 December 2015 9 5,082 5,091

Listed investments are investments in listed equity securities that present the Group with opportunity
for return through dividend income and trading gains The unlisted investments are non-controling
interests and include a strategic holding of 3 5% in PA Group Limited

The fair values of listed investments are based on quoted market prices The fair values of unlisted
investments are determined by the directors based on published financsal information, including
finanoal statements and equity transactions

www archant co uk



ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Notes to the consolidated finanaial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

16

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The consolidated financial statements include the following principal subsidiary undertakings,
all of which are unlisted companies  Archant BHGC Limited 1s a company imited by guarantee
given by Archant Holdings Limited All ather subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned and
incorperated in England, with the exception of The Briush Connection, Inc , which 1s incorporated
in the Unrted States of America

Those companies in which the equity 1s held by a subsidiary undertaking are marked with an
asterisk

Company Company Activity
registration
number
Subsidiary undertakings
Archant BHGC Limited 7783475 Holding company
Archant Community Media Holdings Limited * | 4243174 Holding company
Archant Community Media Limited * 19300 Media company
Not
The British Connection, Inc * applicable Magazine distribution
Archant Properties Limited * 2562545 Property
Archant Holdings Limited 4040110 Holding company
Mustard TV Limited * 7982360 Local television broadcaster

For all UK subsidiary undertakings listed above, other than Archant Community Media Limited,
in accordance with section 479C of The Companies Act 2006 the Company has guaranteed all
outstanding habilities to which those subsidiary undertakings are subject at 31 December 2015
until they are satisfied in full Accordingly, each of those UK subsidiaries 1s exemnpt under section
479A from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of accounts
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18

INVENTORIES

31 December | 31 December 1 January

2015 2014 2014

£000 £000 £000

Newsprint, paper, inks and printing materials 499 808 793
Engineering and mechanical spares 285 332 414
Other 16 21 46
800 1,161 1,253

The cost of inventories for newsprint, paper, Inks and printing matenals recogrised as an expense
by the Group In the year was £8,999,000 (2014 £10,234,000) The cost of inventories for
engineering and mecharucal spares recognised as an expense by the Group in the year was
£39,000 (2014 £107,000) Prowisions against inventories for engineenng and mechanical spares
of £138,000 (2014 £179,000) were charged in operating expenses

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December | 31 December 1 January

2015 2014 2014

Note £000 £000 £000

Trade recewables 11,565 11,510 12,521
Less provision for impairment of receivables {172) (132) (171)
Trade receivables - net 11,393 11,378 12,350
Other receivables 1,821 1,299 2,543
Prepaymenits and accrued income 1,412 1,733 2,060
Bank faclity arrangement fees 22 91 192 -
14,717 14,602 16,953
Analysis of trade and other receivables 31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014

£000 £000 £000

Current 14,533 14,467 16,631
Non-current 184 135 322
Total 14,717 14,602 16,953
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of £172,000 (2014 £132,000} were impaired and
fully provided for Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows

2015 2014 2013

£000 £000 £000
At start of year {132) (171) 310}
Charged in the income statement {143) (241) (394)
Utihsed 103 280 533
At end of year (172) (132) (171)

The movements in the provision for impaired recevables have been included in operating
expenses m the Consolidated income statement

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of £3,752,000 (2014 £3,837,000) were past due but
notimpaired The ageing analysis of the past due amounts 15 as follows

19

31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Nerther past due nor impaired 7.641 7.541 8,064 i
Past due but not impaired
Less than 30 days 2,680 3,027 3,368 :
From 30 to 60 days 812 625 675 !
i
From 61 to 90 days 245 163 216
More than 30 days 15 22 27
At end of year 11,393 11,378 12,350
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Cash at banks and in hand 3,619 3,585 3,777
Short-term bank deposits 10,0C0 - -
Cash and cash equivalents in Consolidated
statement of financial positton 13,619 3,585 3,777
Less bank overdrafts {941) (911) (890)
Net cash and cash equivalents in
Consohdated statement of cash flows 12,678 2,674 2,887

Short-term bank deposits are made for varying periods of between one meonth and three months,
depending on the immediate cash requirements for the Group, and earn interest at the respective

short-term deposit rates

in the Consolidated statement of cash flows, net cash and cash equivalents are shown after

deducting bank overdrafts
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20 HELD FOR SALE ASSETS

31 December | 31 December 1 January

2015 2014 2014

£000 £000 £000

Freehold properties 300 - -
Magazine titles - 2,500 -
300 2,500 -

At 31 December 2014, certan magazine titles were held for sale The sale was completed on
2 Apnil 2015 with proceeds net of transaction costs of £1,898,000 (incdluding £1,570,000 for the
associated subscriptions in advance liabilities, representing cash previously received by the Group),
resulting 1n a Joss on disposal of £602,000 In December 2014, certain photographic magazines
were closed In April 2015, the Group sold a database associated with these magazines at a
profit of £3,000

At 31 December 2015, a freehold property was held for sale Contracts were exchanged for #s
disposal prior to the year end, and the disposal was completed for £300,000 in January 2016

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014

£000 £000 £000

Trade payables 2,39 3132 3,591
Other tax and soqial security 2,355 2,338 2,786
Other payables z,361 1,731 1,800
Accruals and deferred income 12,598 10,779 10,095
Subscriptions in advance 1,813 3,293 3,206
21,518 21,273 21,478

Current 21,314 21,095 21,181
Non-current 204 178 297
21,518 21,273 21,478
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BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS
AND FACILITIES

The bank loans, overdrafts and facilities comprise:

31 December | 31 Decernber 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
EBT overdraft 941 911 890
Amounts falling due after more
than one year:
Term revolving advances facility - - 10,000
Arrangement fees - - (355)
- - 9,645

The EBT has a bank overdraft faclity of £1m and any overdraft under this facility 15 guaranteed
by the Company The Group has a bank overdraft facility of £3m and any overdrafts under this
facility are secured by a fixed and floating charge over the undertaking, property, assets and rights
of certain companies in the Group, together with cross guarantees fram certain companies in
the Group Any overdrafts under the EBT overdraft faciity and the Group overdraft faciity are
repayable on demand

The Group has a term revolving advances facility expinng on 30 June 2019 The maximum
amount avallable throughout the term of this facility 1s £17m The undrawn committed facilities
avallable at 31 December 2015, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at that
date, were £20m (2014 £29m} Provided that the Group continues to comply wath the conditions
of the facility, the Group has the nght to draw down sums up to the amount of the faciity for
periods ending on or before the expiry date

Sums drawn down under the revolving advances faclity are secured by a fixed and floating
charge over the undertaking, property, assets and nghts of certain companies in the Group,
together with cross guarantees from certain companies m the Group

The bank facility arrangement fees of £91,000 (2014 £132,000) have been reclassified to Trade
and other recewvables (Note 18)
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23 PROVISIONS

The movements In provisions are as follows

Dilapidations Onerous | Share-based Newspaper Total
leases payment Society
pension
scheme defiat
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2014 507 133 - - 640
Arising during the year 73 - - 254 327
Utilised (208) (81) - (26) (315)
Released - (52) - - (52)
At 31 December 2014 372 - - 228 600
Arnsing during the year (18) - 209 - 191
Utilised (83) - - (26) {109)
At 31 December 2015 2n - 209 202 682
31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Current 47 178 312
Non-current 635 422 328
Total 682 600 640

Provisions for dilapidations are made in accordance with independent professional advice I the
leases run to expiry, without earlier break clauses being exeraised, or without the leases being
renewed for a further term, these obligations will mostly be settled within five years, with the
remaining liabilities due in various years up to 2036

The provision for share-based payment comprises cash bonuses payable under the Joint Share
Ownership Plan, iIncluding associated National tnsurance, plus National Insurance on the cost of
share options granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Group committed to fund its share of the Newspaper Society Pension and Life Assurance
Scheme deficit prior to the iIncorporation of the Society in Apnl 2014
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DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax s calculated in full on temporary differences under the hability method using the tax rates that are
expected to apply when the related asset 15 reahsed or hability 1s settled

31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets 5,647 6,592 2,472
Non-current habilities (3,169) (4,496) (4,920)
Total 2,978 2,096 (2,448)
The movements on the deferred tax account are as follows
Accelerated Pension Other Losses | Revaluation Intangible Total
capital | temporary timing and loan and fair assets
allowances | differences | differences | relationship value
deficits
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2014 (1,100) 2,472 145 1,633 {996) (4,602) (2,448)
Credit/charge to
Consolidated income
statement e11 {314) (65) (1,357) - - (1,125)
Other comprehensive
income - 4,434 - - (226) 1,461 5,669
At 31 December 2014 (489) 6,592 80 276 (1,222) (3,141) 2,096
Credit/charge to
Consolidated income
statement 22 {199) 58 288 - - 368
Other comprehensive
tngcome - (746) - - (312) 1,072 14
At 31 December
2015 {(268) 5,647 138 564 (1,534) {2,069) 2,478

At 31 December 2014, the Group had tax losses arising in the UK of approximately £3,000,000 that were available
indefinitely for offset against future taxable profits A deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of these losses
which have been utilised in 2015

Deferred tax assets not recognised as they do not satisfy the recogmition cnteria for deferred tax assets under 1AS 12

31 Decemnber | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Tax losses arising 1n the UK of approximately £10,800,000
(2014 £10,800,000) that may be avaslable for offset against
future taxable profits 2,153 2,153 2,093
Non-trade loan relationship deficits and management
expenses carried forward of approximately £3,100,000 (2014
£8,100,000) that may be available for offset against future
taxable profits 610 1,611 1,237
Total 2,763 3,764 3,330
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25 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 20p each

2015 2014 2013
Shares Shares Shares
At 1 January 14,386,822 14,376,822 14,366,822
Shares 1ssued 10,000 10,000 10,000
At 31 December 14,396,822 14,386,822 14,376,822
fssued and fully paid ordinary shares of 20p each
2015 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2,877 2,875 2,873
Shares issued 2 2 2
At 31 December 2,879 2,877 2,875

10,000 (2014 10,000) ordinary shares having a nominal value of £2,000 (2014 £2,000) were
issued during the year The aggregate consideration received was £10,000 (2014 £10,000)

26 SHARE PREMIUM

2015 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2,639 2,631 2.625
Shares issued 8 8 6
At 31 December 2,647 2,639 2,631
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27 OTHER RESERVES

Capital | Revaluation Available Share- Own | Translation Total
reserve | of land and for sale based shares
buildings | mvestments | payments held

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2014 5,369 3,023 2,566 - (5,081) (1) 5,866
Other comprehensive
income:
Purchase of own shares
held by employee trusts - - - - (3) - (3)
Sale of own shares held by
employee trusts - - - - 10 - 10
Depreciation transfer for
freehold property - (123) - - - - {123}
Revaluation of freehold
property - 402 - - - - 402
fair value of hsted and
unlisted investments - - 3,269 - - - 3,269
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - {14) (14)
At 31 December 2014 5,369 3,302 5,835 - (5,074) (25) 9,407
Other comprehensive
income.
Purchase of own shares
held by employee trusts - - - - (5) - (5)
Credit to equity for
share-based payment - - - 155 - - 155
Depreciation transfer for
freehold property - (138) - - - - (138)
Revaluation of freehold
property - 2,238 - - - - 2,238
Fair value of listed and
unlisted investments - - (970) - - - (970)
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - (57) (57
At 31 December 2015 5,369 5,402 4,865 155 {5.079) {(82) | 10,630

The capital reserve comprises the balance of the share premium account in the former holding company on
1 March 2002

Own shares held compnise shares held by the JSOP and the trustees of the EBT, the LTIP Trust and the SIP Trust
other than shares being held as a bare trustee Own shares held compnsed 673,503 shares with a nominal value
of 20p each, acquired at an average cost of £7 54 each (2014 669,683 shares at £7 58) Purchases of shares in
the Company by the EBT have been funded by a bank overdraft guaranteed by the Company and by a loan from
the Company, and purchases by the LTIP and SIP have been funded by cash contributions from the Company and
its subsidharies The trusts provide sources of shares for use in connection wath share schemes

All expenses incurred by the trusts are settled directly by the Company, and charged in the finanaial statements
as incurred
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RETAINED EARNINGS

2015 2014 2013

£000 £000 £000
At 1 January (2,225) 18,678 13,828
Other comprehensive income for the year 4,047 (21,076) 2,483
Deprecation transfer on freehold property 138 123 7
Transfer from specal reserve - 2,350
At 31 December 1,910 (2,275) 18,678

The cumulative amount of goodwall written off to retained earnings at 31 December 2015 in the
consolidated financial statements 15 £8,032,000 (2014 £8,032,000)

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group currently denves its funding from share capital, retained profits and bank borrowing
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a gong concern, prowide returns to shareholders and to maintain a prudent level of debt funding

The Group's princepal financal assets include trade and other receivables and cash and short-term
deposits that derive directly from rts operations The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise
trade and other payables and bank borrowings The main purpose of these finanaial habilities 1s
to finance the Group's operations

The Board retains responsibility for the agreement of the terms of any new or renewed borrowing
faciiies Surplus funds and borrowings are managed centrally, and the Group's treasury objective
Is to minimise borrowing costs and maximise returns on funds, subject to short-term Iiquidity
reguirements

Financal risk factors

The Group’s principal financial nisks are hquidity risk and interest rate nsk The Group has imited
exposure to foreign exchange risk, credit risk and commodity price nsk The Group’s senior
management oversees the management of these nisks withtn an overall nisk strategy which seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s performance

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk results from hawving insufficient financial resources to meet day-to-day fluctuations in
working caprtal and cash flow Ulumate responstbility for liquidity nsk management rests with the
Board The Group monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintamning sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities at all imes so that the Group does not breach borrowing imits or
covenants on 1ts borrowing faclities The Group invests surplus cash in time deposits and money
market deposits with appropriate maturities to ensure sufficient headroom within the cash flow
forecasts At 31 December 2015, the amount avallable under the term facility, which expires on
30 June 2019, was £17m In addition, the Group has an overdraft facility of £3m and the EBT has
a further overdraft facility of £1m The overdraft facilities of the Group and the EBT are repayable
ondemand £20m of these facilities remamed undrawn at the year end, and the Group considers
that 1t should be able to operate within the level of its current facilities
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FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT continued

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk anises from utihsed long-term borrowings, which are managed
centrally Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at vanable rates

The Group has adopted a policy to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and vanable
rate debts Since 15 December 2011 all of the Group’s long-term debt obligations have carned
floating interest rates The Group's overdrafts and undrawn commitments carry fixed rates of
Interest

The Group’s bank borrowing faalities contain financial covenants based on cash flow cover,
Interest cover and the ratio of debt to adjusted EBITDA Throughout the year the Group
maintained adequate headroom against these covenants and 1s expected to do so into the
foreseeable future

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has a subsidiary undertaking in the United States of America, which is hrmited in scale
and largely self-finanaing Therefore the Group has no foreign currency borrowings to hedge
the foreign currency investment The Group has imited exposure to foreign exchange risks with
respect to transactions in US dollars and the Euro Due to the low exposure to currency risk, the
Group does not use forward exchange contracts

Credit risk

The Group has no significant exposure to customer credit risk, due to transactions being
principally of a high volume, low value and short maturity The Group has implemented policies
that require, where appropriate, credit checks on potential customers before sales commence
Cash at bank, including short-term bank deposits also give nse to credit nsk on the amounts
due from counterparties These risks are managed by restricting such transactions to approved
counterparties and designating appropriate hmits for each counterparty The Group considers
that 1ts maximum exposure to credit risk 1s as follows

2015 2014

Notes £000 £000

Trade and other recevables 18 14,717 14,602
Cash and cash equivatents 19 13.619 3,585
28,336 18,187

Commodity price risk

The Group is affected by the price volatiity of newsprint and paper which are required In 1ts
operating activities The Group has an agreement to sourced most of 1ts newsprint from a single
major supplier and negotiates prices for newsprint at least six months in advance
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30 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2015 2014
Notes £000 £000
Profit/{loss) before taxation 3,415 (3,263)
Finance costs 8 716 887
Finance income 7 {(714) (2,110)
Finance expense on pension assets/habilities 35 1.140 478
Operating profit/{loss) 4,557 (4,008)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 3,282 3,729
Amaortisation of intangible fixed assets 13 3,249 4,312
Impairment of intangible fixed assets 13 164 6,194
Revaluation surplus credited to income statement
against prior year defiat (257) (796)
Fair value deficit on available for sale financial assets
charged to income statement - 1
Losses on disposals of intangible fixed assets 599 -
(Profit)/loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment (11) 48
Decrease In inventones 361 92
(Increase)/decrease In trade and other receivables {(216) 2,543
Increasef(decrease) in trade and other payables 1,517 (491)
Moverments in provisions and other impairments 500 (40)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations {2) (14
Pension costs charged against operating profit 35 1,090 1,200
Cash contributions to pension scheme 35 (3,225) {3,091)
Cash flow from operating activities 11,608 9,679
31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2015 2014
£000 £000
Contracts entered into, but not provided for, for property plant
and equipment amounted to 796 81
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COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The Group leases various properties and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements The total future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are
as follows

Land and buildings Plant, equipment
and vehicles

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating leases which expire
No later than one year 59 44 17 491
Later than one year and no later
than five years 903 1,466 2,277 1,342
Later than five years 2,791 3,043 - -

3,753 4,553 2,394 1,833

The Group has sub-let two operating leases (2014 two) and the future aggregate mirimurm sub-lease
amounts expected to be received amount to £73,000 (2014 £131,000)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and wholly-owned subsidiary comparies, or between wholly-
owned subsidiary companies, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
Note Transactions between the Company and its subsidiary comparues are disclosed in the Company’s
separate financial statements

Transactions wath the Archant Penston & Life Assurance Scheme and the Archant Pension Plan are
disclosed in Note 35

Key management compensation is disclosed in Note 5

In July 2015, the Group acquired a 16 67% equity holding in WiSpire Limited (WiSpire), a provider
of high-speed broadband to rural communities in Norfolk, at a cost of £40,000 induding associated
legal costs Following the investment, the Group have provided marketing and accounting services to
WiSpire to the value of £40,000, and also advanced a convertible loan of £378,000 As the planned
expansion of WiSpire’s busingss 1s in 1ts early stages, the recovery of the investment and loan 15
uncertain, and full provision has been made for the non-recovery of thesea items
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has a potential hability for rent and other outgoings on a small number of properties
occupied by a former subsidiary, where the Group prowided a guarantee that the company meets
their obligations under the leases which expire in 2018 No daims have been receved by the Group
at the date of this report

PENSION SCHEMES

DEFINED BENEFIT PROVISION

The Group provides defined benefit pensions through the Archant Pension & Life Assurance Scheme
(“the Scheme"}, which has a defined benefit section (‘'the DBS’), and a senior management section
(‘the SMS’} The DBS was closed to new entrants in February 1998

The Scheme assets are held in a separate trustee-administered fund to meet long-term pension
habilities to past and present employees The directors of the Trustee Company (the “Trustee Directors’)
of the fund are required to act in the best interest of the fund’s beneficianes The Group has a policy
that at least one-third of all Trustee Directors should be nominated by members of the fund, induding
at least one member by current pensioners

In 2009 the Company amended the defimition of final penstonable salary such that pensionable
earnings used to calculate final salary pension benefits became capped at the employees” pensionable
earnings in the twelve months prior to 1 December 2009 Members of the DBS continue to accrue
additional pensionable years of service at their current accrual rate for the purpose of calculating
pension benefit The level of retirement benefit 1s based pncipally on years of pensionable service
and final pensionable salary, subject to the 2009 Cap

Contribution rates to the DBS are calculated as a percentage of pensionable earnings determined on
the basis of the most recent actuanal valuation and with the advice of independent actuaries, using
the projected unit method

INSURANCE CONTRACT

In December 2015, the Trustee (with support from the Company) agreed to purchase an insurance
contract with Partnership Life Assurance Company Lmited This insurance contract took the form of
a medically underwritten bulk annuity policy covering a predefined group of pensioner members,
selected as those with annual pension amounts over a pre-agreed imit

This investment decision was taken by the Trustee Company with a view to reduang the inflation,
interest rate and mortality risks within the Archant Penston & Life Assurance Scheme These risks
specifically concentrated around the predefined group due to their propertionately bigher indmidual
liability

The purchase of the annurties for £20 4m was completed in January 2016, and was funded by the
hquidation of Scheme assets, with £15m from the Scheme’s corporate bond fund, £5 2m from the
Scheme’s equity holdings and the residual balance from the Trustee bank account

At 31 December 2015, the present value of the abligations to these pensioners was £17 3m resulting
in 3 £3 1m shortfall to the fund shown as a deduction from the Scheme assets

Individual pensioners’ pensions are not affected by this investment and the insurance contract 1
treated as an asset of the Scheme
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PENSION SCHEMES continued

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PROVISION

Following the closure of the DBS to new entrants in February 1998, membership of a defined
contribution section of the Scheme (‘the DCS') was available The DCS was dlosed 1o new entrants
on 31 December 2012 and from 1 January 2013 contnbutions for former members of the DCS and
new entrants have been paid into a new defined contribution scheme, the Archant Pension Plan

The Group cost of defined contnbution pensions 15 disclosed in Note 5

OTHER PENSION PROVISION

The Group also pays ex gratia pensions on an unfunded basis to certain former employees and their
dependents and, accordingly, provides for this hability, calculated in accordance with actuanal adwice,
in the financial statements

PENSION DISCLOSURE UNDER IAS 19

The following information for the Scheme 15 measured in accordance with 145 19, based on the most
recent actuanal valuation at 1 January 2014 (‘the Valuation'), and has been updated to 31 December
2015 by an independent actuary

The assets and liabilities of the Scheme at 31 December are:

31 December | 31 December 1 January

2015 2014 2014

£000 £000 £000

Equity instruments 76,227 78,039 79,031
Debt instruments 28,712 30,765 40,054
Investment funds 50,411 46,911 32,582
Assets held by insurance company 17,393 244 -
Insurance contract {20,417) - -
Bank and cash balances 1.731 1,4%4 1,402
Fair value of the Scheme assets 154,057 157,453 153,089
Present value of funded obligations 185,063 189,911 164,284
Present value of unfunded obligations 363 501 556
Total Scheme obligations 185,426 150,412 164,840
Scheme deficit 31,369 32,959 1n,771

The unfunded obligations are in respect of the ex gratia penstons pard by the Group The present
value of these obligations has been calculated in accordance with |AS 19 by an independent actuary
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35 PENS'ON SCHEMES continued

Analysis of the movement in the balance sheet liability

2015 2014

£000 £000
Defiot in the Scheme at beginning of year (32,959) (11,771)
Movements
Total recogrised in the Consolidated income statement (2,230) {1,678)
Employer contributions 3,225 3,09
Total gains/(losses) recognised 1n equity 595 (22,601}
Deficit in the Scheme at end of year (31,369) (32,959)

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated income statement are as

follows:

2015 2014

£000 £000
Current service cost 829 953
Administrative expenses 261 247
Operating expenses 1,090 1,200
Interest on funded obligations 5,992 6,515
Interest on unfunded obligations 23 26
Interest income on the Scheme assets {4.875) (6,063)
Finance expense on pension assets/liabihities 1,140 478
Total recognised in the Consolidated income statement 2,230 1,678
Actual return on the Scheme assets 2,113 7,887
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35 PENSION SCHEMES continued

Changes in the present value of the Scheme obligations are as follows:

2015 2014
£000 £000
Opening Scheme obligation - funded obligations 189,911 164,284
Opening Scheme obligation — unfunded obligations 501 556
Total opening Scheme cbhgation 190.412 164,840
Current service cost 829 953
Interest expense — funded obligations 5,992 6,515
Interest expense — unfunded cbligations 23 26
DBS benefit payments from plan assets {7,176) {6,621)
DCS benefit payments from plan assets (1.272) (764)
Participant contributions 6 7
Insurance premiums for nsk benefits (218) (24)
Remeasurements
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions 2,375 2,170
Effect of changes in financial assumptions (6,461) 19,036
Effect of experience adjustments 825 3,219
Effect of changes in DCS fund values 252 1,136
Ex gratia benefit payments (65) (81)
Ex gratia remeasurements (96) -
Closing Scheme obligation 185,426 190,412
Closing Scheme obligations
Funded obligations 185,063 189,911
Unfunded obligations 363 501
185,426 190,412
The funded obligations by partiapant status comprise:
2015 2014
£000 £000
Active members 24,243 23,867
Deferred members 77.517 79,477
Pensioners 83,303 86,567
185,063 189,911
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PENSION SCHEMES continued

The benefits payable by the Scheme are expected 10 Increase steadily over the next 20 years as acuve and deferred
members reach retirement After that the benefits payable should drop off markedly as mortality rates increase

The expected benefits payments in the next 10 years are:

£000
In the years 2016 to 2020 33,091
In the years 2021 to 2025 34,876
67,967
Changes in the fair value of the Scheme assets are as follows:
2015 2014
£000 £000
Opening fair value of the Scheme assets 157,453 153,069
Interest Income on the Scheme assets 4,875 6,063
Contributions by employer 3,225 3,091
Partiapant contributions 6 7
DBS benefit payments from plan assets (7.176) (6,621)
DCS benefit payments from plan assets (1,272) (764)
Ex gratia benefit payments (65) 81)
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets (261) (247)
Insurance premiums for risk benefits (218) (24
Effect of changes in DCS fund values 252 1,136
:'\l‘-lec:;a:urement -~ return on plan assets excluding interest (2.762) 1,824
Closing fair value of the Scheme assets 154,057 157,453
Assumptions
The major assumptions used by the actuary in updating the Valuation for IAS 19 were
2015 2015 2014
Non-insured Insured
members members
% % %
Rate of increase in salares 000 0.00 000
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 200 190 200
Rate of statutory increase to relevant
pension elements 295 285 290
Discount rate 3.83 368 359
Inflation 300 2 90 295
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PENSION SCHEMES continued

The current assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

2015 2015 2014
insured Non-insured
Retinng today
Male 225 235 227
Retinng in 20 years
Male 246 248

Sensitivity analysis of the principal assumptions used to measure the Scheme

liabilities

The sensitmties regarding the prinaipal assumptions used to measure the Scheme habilibes are set out below

Assumption

Change in assumption

Impact on Scheme liabilities

Discount rate
Rate of inflation

Life expectancy

Increase by 0 25%
Increase by 0 25%
{ncrease by 1 year

Decrease hy 3 5%
Increase by 2 3%
Increase by 2 5%

Following the Valuation, the Group has agreed with the Trustee Directors to return the on-going funding level of
the Scheme to 100% of the projected past service labtlities wathin a penod of eleven years and four months from
the date of the Valuation and to mantain funding at least at this level once the funding level of the Scheme 15
100% of the projected past servce liabilities The Group expects to contnbute approximately £3,200,000 to the

Scheme in 2016
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FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

For all periods up to and mncluding the year ended
31 December 2014, Archant Limited ('the Group”)
prepared its financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom generally accepted accounting
practice (UK GAAP) These financial statements, for the
year ended 31 December 2015, are the first the Group
Is required to prepare in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union {EU}

IFRS 1 *First-ttme Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards’ sets out the requirements for
the first time adoption of IFRS The Group is required
to establish its IFRS accounting policies for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and, in general, apply these
retrospectively to determine the IFRS opening balance
sheet at 1 January 2014, the date of transiion

The standard permits a number of optional exemptions
1o this general principle The Group has adopted the
following approach to the key exemptions

Exemptions applied

IFRS 1 allows first-ime adopters certain exemptions

from the general requirement to apply IFRS as effective

for December 2015 year end retrospectively The Group

has taken the following exemptions

* |FRS 3 Business Combinations has not been applied
to acquisitons of subsidiaries or of interests in
assaciates and Joint ventures that occurred before 1
January 2014

s Certain items of property, plant and equipment
were carried in the balance sheet on the basis of
valuations performed in 1996, prior to the Group
adopting FRS 15 As altowed under IFRS 1, the
Group has elected to regard those far values as
deemed cost as at the date of transttion

» Cumulative currency translation differences for all
foreign operations are deemed to be zero as at 1
January 2014

» [FRS 2 Share-based Payment has not been applied
to any equity instruments that were granted on or
before 7 November 2002, nor has it been apphed to
equity instruments granted after 7 November 2002
that vested before 1 January 2005 This treatment
1s consistent with the transitional provisions taken
when the group adopted FRS 20, the UK equivalent
standard

» Cumulative actuarial gains and losses on pensions
and other post employment benefits are recognised
in fullin equity at the date of transition to IFRS This
15 the same treatment as under UK GAAP

This Appendix explains the principal adjustments made
by the Group In restating its UK GAAP balance sheet
as at 1 January 2014 and 1ts previously published UK
GAAP financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014
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Reconcliation of consolidated profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2014

UK GAAP IFRS IFRS
remeasurements
Notes £600 £000 £000
REVENUE 121,823 121,823
OPERATING LOSS T1 {4,576) 568 (4,008)
Finance income 2110 2,110
Finance costs (887) (887)
Finance income/(expense)
on pension assets/lhabifities T12 750 (1,228) (478)
LOSS BEFORE
TAXATION (2,603) {660) (3,263}
Income tax expense (1,410) 303 (1,107)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (4,013) (357) (4,370)
IFRS REMEASUREMENTS TO INCOME STATEMENT
L Changes to operating profit
2014
£000
Change in recognition of operating costs under 1AS 19 (289)
Additional depreciation following revaluation of freehold property (28)
Reversal of amortisation on goodwill 274
Additional impairment on goodwill (198)
Reduced depreciation charge on reclassification of software to intangibles 944
Increased amortisation charge on reclassification of software to intangibles (894)
Increased impairment charge on reclassification of software to intangibles (50)
Surplus on property valuations booked against prior year deficit in income statement 796
Deficits on fair values of listed and unlisted investments (1)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 14
Change in operating profit 568
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Consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2014

UK GAAP IFRS IFRS IFRS
reclassifications | remeasurements
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets T2 35,329 1,495 - 36,824
Property, plant and
equipment T2,T6 25,471 (1,495) 1,344 25,320
Avallable-for-sale
financial assets T7 174 - 2,628 2,802
Trade and other
receivables T4 - 322 - 322
60,974 322 3,972 65,268
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 1,253 - - 1,253
Trade and other
recevables T4, T14 18,269 (1,638) - 16,631
Cash and cash equivalents 3,777 - - 3,777
23,299 (1,638) - 21,661
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 84,273 (1,316} 3,972 86,929
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings and overdrafts TS - 890 - 890
Trade and other payables TS, T14 33,012 {11,832) 1 21,181
Current tax habilities T5 - 10,007 - 10,007
Provisions T14 - 312 - 312
33,012 (623) 1 32,390
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 9,645 - - 9,645
Trade and other payables T5 - 297 - 297
Provisions Ti4 640 (312) 328
Deferred tax T4, T8 - {3,150) 5,598 2,448
Defined benefit
pension hability T4 9,299 2,472 - 11,771
19,584 (693) 5,598 24,489
TOTAL LIABILITIES 52,596 (1,316) 5,599 56,879
NET ASSETS 31,677 - (1,627) 30,050
EQUITY
Called up share capital 2,875 - - 2,875
Share premium account 2,631 - - 2,631
Revaluation reserve T6 248 - 2,775 3,023
Other reserves T9 288 - 2,555 2,843
Retained earnings ™ 25,635 - (6,957) 18,678
TOTAL EQUITY 31.677 - (1,627 30,050

www archant co uk

65




ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 2015
APPENDIX 1 TRANSITION TO IFRS — this appendix does not form part of the financial statements of Archant Limited

Consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2014

UK GAAP IFRS IFRS IFRS
reclassifications | remeasurements
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets T2,T3 25,691 (1,516) 76 24,251
Property, plant and
equipment T2,T6 22,106 (984) 2,742 23,864
Avallable-for-sale
financial assets T7 174 - 5,893 6,067
Trade and other
receivables - 135 - 135
Deferred tax assets T4,78 - 6,460 (4,364) 2,096
47,971 4,095 4,347 56,413
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 1,161 - - 1,161
Trade and other
receivables T14 15,035 (568) - 14,467
Cash and cash equivalents 3,585 - - 3,585
19,781 (568) - 19,213
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE T3 - 2,500 - 2,500
TOTAL ASSETS 67,752 6,027 4,347 78,126
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings and
overdrafts T5 - 911 - 911
Trade and other payables T5,T14 32,352 {11,257) - 21,095
Current tax liabilities TS - 9,735 - 9,735
Provisions - 178 - 178
32,352 (433) - 31,919
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables - 178 - 178
Provisions T4 732 (310) - 422
Defined benefit
pension hability T4 26,367 6,592 - 32,959
27,099 6,460 - 23,559
TOTAL LIABILITIES 59,451 6,027 - 65,478
NET ASSETS 8,301 - 4,347 12,648
EQUITY
Called up share capital 2,877 - - 2,877
Share premium account 2,639 - - 2,639
Revaluation reserve T10 240 - 3,062 3,302
Other reserves ™ 295 - 5,810 6,105
Retained earmings T 2,250 - (4,525) (2,275}
TOTAL EQUITY 8,301 - 4,347 12,648
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IFRS RECLASSIFICATIONS

T2 Software and website development costs

Under |AS 38, software and website development costs are treated as intangible assets, rather than tangible
assets as under UK GAAP

2014 2013

£000 £000

intangible assets 984 1,495
Property, plant and equipment (984) (1,495)

T3 Assets held for sale

At 31 December 2014, the magazine portfolio comprising English Garden, Enghsh Home and Discover Britain
were held for sale

2014 2013

£000 £000

Intangible assets (2,500) -
Assets held for sale 2,500 -

T4 Deferred tax

a) Reclassification

Under UK GAAP deferred taxation assets were classified in debtors due after more than one year 1AS 12 requires
that deferred taxation amounts be classified as non-current assets The deferred tax habilities were classified as part
of provisions Under IAS 12, these have been reclassified separately The effect of this reclassification 1s as follows

2014 2013

£000 £000

Trade and other receivables - (678)
Provisions 132 -
Defined benefit pension Liability (6,592) (2,472)
Nen-current deferred tax asset 6,460 3,150

The deferred tax assets and hiabilities have been presented separately, as the Group does not have a legally
enforceable nght to set-off

T5 Current tax, borrowings and overdrafts

The current tax liability and borrowings and overdrafts have been reclassified from trade and other payables, to
comply with 1AS 1, as follows

2014 2013

£000 £000

Trade and other payables - current 10,824 11,194
Trade and other payables — non-current (178) (297)
Borrowings and overdrafts {911) (890)
Income tax payable {9,735) {10,007)
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IFRS REMEASUREMENTS

T6 Freehold property valuation
On transition to FRS, the Group has adopted a policy of revaluing freehold properties

2014 2013

Notes £000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 2,742 1,344
Revaluation deficits debited to income statement T11 1,567 2,363
Deferred taxation T8 {1,161) (932)
Revaluation reserve T10 (3,148) (2,775)

T7 Listed and unlisted investments

Under UK GAAP, fixed asset investments are held at cost less prowisions for any permanent imparrment Under
IFRS 9, investments are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at therr fair value at the balance
sheet date The Group's investments consist of isted and unhsted investments and are included in the balance sheet
at fair value with any movements in fair value taken to the Consolidated staternent of comprehensive income

2014 2013

Notes £000 £000

Other financial assets 5,893 2,628
Deficit on fair value debited to income statement T 4 2
Deferred taxation T8 (62) {64)
Available for sale reserve T9 (5,835) (2,566)

T8 Deferred taxation

The deferred taxation balance has been reduced by the timing differences on intangible assets and the impact of

the freehold property revaluation and fair value of histed and unlisted investments

2014 2013

Notes £000 £000

Intangible assets T11 3141 4,602
Freehold property valuation T6 1,161 932
Other financial assets T7 62 64
Deferred tax non-current asset (4,364) (5,598)
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IFRS REMEASUREMENTS

T9 Other reserves

Other reserves have increased as a result of the available-for sale reserve and the reserve for exchange differences

on the translation of foreign operations

2014 2013
Notes £000 £000
Available for sale reserve T7 5,835 2,566
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations T (25) (an
Other reserves 5,810 2,555
T10 Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve has increased following the revaluation of the Group’s freehold properties
2014 2013
Note £000 £000
Freehold property revaluation Te 3,148 2,775
Release against revaluation deficit (86) -
Revaluation reserve 3,062 2,775

T11 Retained earnings
Retained earnings have been impacted by revaluation defi

ats on the valuation of freehold property, deficits on

the farr value of listed and unlisted investments, exchange differences on the translation of foreign operations

and the reversa! of amortisation of goodwill previcusly charged under UK GAAP
2014 2013
Notes £000 £000
Revaluation defiats debited to income statement T6 1,567 2,363
Revaluation release against revaluation deficit T10 (86) -
Deficit on fair value debited to income statement T7 4 2
Deferred tax on carrying value of intangible assets 8 314 4,602
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 19 (25) (1)
Reversal of amortisation on goodwill (274) -
Additional impairment on goodwill 198 -
Other - 1
4,525 6,957
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IFRS REMEASUREMENTS

T12 Adoption of I1AS 19
The measurement of service cost and financing cost, and the recogrition of administrative expenses paid from

plan assets

2014

£000
Increase in service cost 42
Recognition of administrative expenses paid from plan assets 247
Change in operating profit 289
Change in basis of calculation of financing cost 1,228
Reduction in charge through STRGL under UK GAAP (1,517)
Reduction in deferred tax charge as a result of pension changes above {303}
Increased deferred tax charge through STRGL under UK GAAP 303

T13 Business combinations

The method of accounting for business combsations under IFRS 1s significantly different to that applied under
UK GAAP The main differences applicable to the Group relate to the cessation of goodwill amortisation and the
recognition and amortisation of Intangible assets with acquired businesses which are explained below

a} Goodwill amortisation
IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ prohibits merger accounting and the amortisation of goodwaill The standard
requires goodwill to be carned at cost with annual impairment reviews

The Group has elected to take advantage of the exemption under IFRS 1 not to restate all business combinations

prior to 1 January 2014 The impact of IFRS 3 and IFRS 1 on the Group’s accounting for goodwill in 2014 15 as

follows

* the value of goodwill reported under UK GAAP at 1 January 201415 frozen, and

» the goodwill amortisation charge in 2014 (£274,000) under UK GAAP has been reversed As a result, an
impairment charge of £198,000 was made in 2014 {Note T1 above)

b) Recognition and amortisation of intangible assets within acquired business
Under IFRS 3, the identification of assets and habilities acquired within businesses includes intangible assets
not previously recognised under UK GAAP

The Group made no acquisitions in 2014
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IFRS REMEASUREMENTS

T14 Other reclassifications
a) Receivables Non-current recevables for vehicle lease deposits have been reclassified from current assets to
non-current assets as required by IFRS (December 2013 £322,000, December 2014 £135,000)

b) Under IFRS, an expense prepayment should not be recognised if the amount charged had not been paid in
full at the balance sheet date Therefore amounts included in prepayments but unpaid at the balance sheet
date under UK GAAP have been reclassified and deducted from trade and other payables (December 2013
£638,000, December 2014 £433,000)

) Payables Vehicle manufacturer rebates are recognised over the lease terms of the relevant vehicles, and
the amounts deferred to future periods are” carned forward In payables Non-current payables have been
reclassified from current habilities to non-current habilities as required by IFRS (December 2013 £297,000,
December 2014 £178,000)

d) Under UK GAAP, provisions were classified as non-current Current provisions have been reclassified as required
by IFRS (December 2013 £312,000, December 2014 £178,000)

T15 Short-Term Employee Benefits

The employees of the Group accrue holidays over the financial year of the Group, and the Group has a policy that
all holiday must be taken in the year in which it was earned As the benefit1s non-accumulating, the Group does
not accrue for any holiday entitlement earned but not taken at the balance sheet date

Accordingly, there 1s no impact from IAS 19 on the Group’s transition to [FRS

T16 Restatement of cash flow statement from UK GAAP to IFRS

The transition from UK GAAP to IFRS has no effect upon the reported cash flows generated by the Group The IFRS
cash flow statement is presented in a different format from that required under UK GAAP with cash flows split into
three categones of activities — operating activities, investing activities and financing actities The reconaling items
between the UK GAAP presentation and the IFRS presentation have no net impact on the cash flows generated
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION for the year ended 31 December 2015

31 December 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
restated restated
Notes £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment c4 3 2 1
Other financial assets c5 170.409 171,328 168,972
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings Cé 84,481 83,226 80,588
254,893 254,556 249,561
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables C6 201 203 70
Current tax recoverable 1,639 1,453 1,725
Cash and cash equivalents Le¥) 10,001 i 2
11,841 1,857 1,797
TOTAL ASSETS 266,734 256,213 251,358
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings and overdrafts 8 3,223 3,380 2.871
Trade and other payable o} 1,070 869 426
4,293 4,249 3,297
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank lpans and facilities c8 - - 9,645
Provisions Ci0 201 - -
Deferred taxation C1i (6) 54 63
Amounts owed to group undertakings Cci12 213,742 198,995 196,599
213,937 199,049 206,307
TOTAL LIABILITIES 218,230 203,298 209,604
NET ASSETS 48,508 52,915 41,754
EQUITY
Called up share capital C13 2,879 2,877 2,875
Share premium account Ci14 2,647 2,639 2,631
Other reserves C15 {1,485) (666) (3,033)
Retained earnings Cle 44,463 48,065 39,281
TOTAL EQUITY 48,504 52,915 41,754
S Bax BG McCarthy
Chairman Director 8 March 2016
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the year ended 31 December 2015

Share Share Own | Avallable Share- | Retained Total
capital | premum shares for sale based | earnings equity
held | investments | payment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2014 2,875 2,631 (5,081) 2,048 - 39,281 41,754
Profit for the year - - - - - 8,784 8,784
Other comprehensive
Income
Farr value of listed
and unlisted
investments - - - 2,360 - - 2,360
Purchase of own
shares heid by
employee trusts - - (3) - - - (3)
Sale of own shares
held by employee
trusts - - 10 - - - 10
Issue of share capital 2 8 - - - - 10
At 31 December 2014 2,877 2,639 {5,074) 4,408 - 48,065 52,915
Loss for the year - - - - - (3,602) {3,602)
Other comprehensive
income
Fair value of listed
and unlisted
investments - - - {970} - - (970)
Credit to equity for
share-based payments - - - - 155 - 155
Purchase of own
shares held by
employee trusts - - 4) - - - 4
Issue of share capital 2 B - - - - 10
At 31 December 2015 2,879 2,647 {5.,078) 3,438 155 44,463 48,504
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

£000 £000
(Loss)/profit before taxation {4,439) 6,263
Finance costs 6.336 7,161
Finance income {3,142} (14,864}
Operating loss (1,245} {1,440}
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1 1
(Increase)/decrease 1n trade and other receivables {99) 59
Decrease In trade and other payables 45 374
Adjustment for share-based payment 268 -
Movements in inter company 1,043 1,042
Cash flow from operating activities 13 36
tncome tax paid (761) (252)
Net cash used in operating activities (748) {216)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2) (2)
Interest received 1 .
Dividends received on unhsted investments 703 2,110
Cash transferred from subsidiary undertaking 10,500 8,000
Net cash generated in Investing activities 11,212 10,108
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (211) (389)
Issue of ordinary share capital 10 10
Sale of ordinary shares by EBT - 10
Repayment of loan under bank revolving credit faality - (10,000)
Banking faalities financing costs (102) (30}
Purchase of own shares (4) (3)
Net cash used in financing activities {(307) (10,402)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from activities 10,157 (510)
Opening cash and cash equivalents (3,379} (2,869)
Closing cash and cash equivalents 6,778 (3,379
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out in Note 1 of the consolidated financal
statements, except as noted below

Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for impairment The Cempany
grants share-based payments to the employees of subsidiary companies Each penod the fair value of the
employee services received by the subsidiary as a capital contribution from the Company is reflected as an addition
to investments in subsidiaries

Loans to other Group undertakings and all other receivables are iInmally recorded at farr value, which is generally
the proceeds advanced They are then subsequently carned at amortised cost The loans are interest bearing and
repayable on demand, subject to being given three calendar months’ notice

Loans from other Group undertakings and all other payables are intially recorded at fair value, which 1s generaily
the proceeds received They are then subsequently carried at amortised cost The loans are interest hearing and
repayable on demand, subject to being given three calendar months’ notice

The Company's financial risk i1s managed as part of the Group’s strategy and policies as discussed 1in Note 29 of
the consolidated financal statements

in accordance with the exemption allowed by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not
presented its own Income statement

2 EMPLOYEES

Average monthly number of staff 2015 2014
Company 21 26
Full time equivalents 20 25

The average monthly number of staff shown above for the company includes six (2014 six) non-executive
directors of the Company

3 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Amounts paid by the Company In respect of services provided by the Group’s auditors are as follows

2015 2014
£000 £000

Auditors’ remuneration
Audit 40 25
Tax compliance 78 39
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c4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and Total
equipment
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2014 12 12
Additions 2 2
At 31 December 2014 14 14
Additions 2 2
At 31 December 2015 16 16
Depreciation
At 1 January 2014 11 1"
Charge for year 1 1
At 31 December 2014 12 12
Charge for year 1 1
At 31 December 2015 13 13
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 3 3
At 31 December 2014
At 1 January 2014 1 1
C5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Subsidiary Listed Unlisted Total
undertakings
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost at 1 January 2014 177,321 7 60 177.388
Farr value adjustment - 5 2,080 2,085
Fair value at 1 January 2014 177,321 12 2,140 179,473
Fair value adjustment - 3) 2,359 2,356
Fair value at 31 December 2014 177.321 9 4,499 181,829
Share-based payment 57 - - 57
Fair value adjustment - - (976) (976)
Fair value at 31 December 2015 172,378 9 3,523 180,910
Provisions
At 1 January 2014 10,501 - 25 10,526
Fair value adjustment 1 January 2014 - - (25) {25)
Dol st ) tamiary 2000 : | rosor
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 166,877 9 3,523 170,409
At 31 December 2014 166,820 9 4,499 171,328
At 1 January 2014 166,820 12 2,140 168,972
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ce TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Current
Prepayments and accrued income 110 1" 70
Bank facihity arrangement fees 91 192 -
201 203 70
Non current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 84,481 83,226 80,588
c7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Cash at banks and in hand 1 1 2
Short-term bank deposits 10,000 - -
Cash and cash equwalents in Company statement
of financial position 10,001 1 2
Less bank overdrafts {3,223) (3,380) (2.871)
Net cash and cash equivalents in Company statement
of cash flows 6,778 (3,379 (2,869)
c8 BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND FACILITIES
The hank loans, overdrafts and faclities comprise
31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Current
Bank overdrafts 2,282 2,469 1,981
EBT overdraft 941 9 890
3,223 3,380 2,871
Non-current
Bank loans and facilities - - 10,000
Arrangement fees - - (355)
- - 9,645
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015

Cc8 BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND FACILITIES continued

The EBT has a bank overdraft facility of £1m and any overdraft under this facility 1s guaranteed by the Company
The Group has a bank overdraft facility of £3m and any overdrafts under this facility are secured by a fixed and
fioating charge over the undertaking, property, assets and nights of certain companies in the Group, together with
cross guarantees from certain companies in the Group

The Group has a term revolving advances facility expiring on 30 June 2019 The maximum amount throughout
the term of this facility 1s £17m The undrawn committed facilities available at 31 December 2015, in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met at that date, were £20m (2014 £29m; Provided that the Group
continues to comply with the conditions of the facllity, the Group has the nght to draw down sums up to the
amount of the facility for periods ending on or before the expiry date

Sums drawn down under the revolving advances facility are secured by a fixed and floating charge over the
undertaking, property, assets and nights of certain compantes in the Group, together with cross guarantees from

certain companies in the Group

The bank facility arrangement fees of £91,000 (2014 £192,000) have been reclassified to Debtors (Note C6)

9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December | 31 December 1 lanuary
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Amounts owed to group undertakings 257 69 -
Other payables a4 5 3
Accruals and deferred income 809 795 423
1,070 869 426
10 PROVISIONS
The movemnents In provisions are as follows
National Insurance Share-based Total
on share options payment
£000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2014 -
Arising during the year 13 188 201
At 31 December 2015 13 188 201
2015 2014
Analysis of tota) provisions £000 £000
Non-current 201 -

The prowision for share-based payment comprises cash bonuses payable under the Joint Share Ownership Plan,
including assoctated National Insurance, plus Naticnal Insurance on the cost of share options granted under the
Long-Term Incentive Plan
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1 DEFERRED TAX
The movements an the deferred tax account are as follows
Accelerated Other timing Available for Total
capital differences | sale investments
allowances
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2014 1 - (64) (63)
Credited to the . 6 ) 6
income statement
Credited to other ) ) 3 3
comprehensive Income
At 31 December 2014 1 6 (61) (54)
Credited to the
Income statement ) 54 ) >4
Credited to other ) 6 5
comprehensive income
At 31 December 2015 1 60 (55) 6

The Company has management expenses carried forward of approximately £453,000 (2014 £453,000}
A deferred tax asset has not been recogrised in respect of these management expenses carried forward as they
do not satisfy the recogniion critena for deferred tax assets under IAS 12

C12 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
31 December | 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 213,742 198,995 196,599
Al habilities faling due in more than one year mature between two and five years
c13 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Issued ordinary shares of 20p each
2015 2014 2013
Shares Shares Shares
At 1 January 14,386,822 14,376,822 14,366,822
Shares i1ssued 10,000 10,000 10,000
At 31 December 14,396,822 14,386,822 14,376,822
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 20p each
2015 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2,877 2,875 2,873
Shares i1ssued 2 2 2
At 31 December 2,879 2,877 2,875

10,000 (2014 10,000) ordinary shares having a nominal value of £2,000 {2014 £2,000) were 1ssued during the
year The aggregate consideration received was £10,000 (2014 £10,000)
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C14  SHARE PREMIUM

2015 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2,639 2,631 2,625
Shares i1ssued 8 8 6
At 31 December 2,647 2,639 2,631
C15 OTHER RESERVES
Available for Share-based Qwn shares Total
sale investments payments held
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2014 2,048 - (5,081) (3,033}
Other comprehensive income
Purchase of own shares held
by employee trusts - - (3) 3)
Sale of own shares held by
employee trusts - - 10 10
Fair value of histed and
unlisted investments 2,360 - - 2,360
At 31 December 2014 4,408 - (5.0743) (666)
Other comprehensive income
Purchase of own shares held
by employee trusts - - 4 4
Credit to equity for share-
based payment - 155 - 155
Fair value of hsted and
unlisted investments (970) - - (970)
At 31 Decermnber 2015 3,438 155 (5,078) {1,485)

Own shares held comprise shares held by the JSOP and the trustees of the EBT, the LTIP Trust and the SIP Trust
other than shares being held as a bare trustee Own shares held compnised 673,503 shares with a norminal value
of 20p each, acquired at an average cost of £7 54 each (2014 669,683 shares at £7 58} Purchases of shares in
the Company by the EBT have been funded by a bank overdraft guaranteed by the Company and by a loan from
the Company, and purchases by the LTIP and SIP have been funded by cash contributions from the Company and

its subsidiaries The trusts prowide sources of shares for use in connection with share schemes

All expenses incurred by the trusts are settled directly by the Company, and charged in the finanaal statements

as incurred
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c16 RETAINED EARNINGS

2015 2014
£000 £000
At 1 lanuary 48,065 39,281
Profit/loss from income statement {3,602) 8,784
At 31 December 44,463 48,065
c17 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company entered into the following transactions with subsidiary companies
2015 2014
£000 £000
Dividends received from subsidiary companies - 10,000
Interest received from subsidiaries on inter company loans 2,427 2,754
Interest paid to subsidiaries on inter company loans (5,922} (6,579)
Amounts recerved for group rehef 1,358 2,817
Cash transferred from subsidiary company (10,500) (8,000}
Net group recharges receivable 2,342 1,875
Net funding by subsidiary for operating expenses (3.385) (2,680)
Net movement in balances with subsidiaries (13,680) 187
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APPENDIX 2

COMPANY TRANSITION

TO IFRS

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

For all penods up to and including the year ended 31
December 2014, Archant Limited prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Umted Kingdom
generally accepted accounting practice (UK GAAP)
These financial staternents, for the year ended 31
December 2015, are the first the Company 1s required
to prepare in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union (EU)

IFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards’ sets out the requirements for the
first time adoption of IFRS The Company Is required
to establish its IFRS accounting policies for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and, in general, apply these
retrospectively to determine the IFRS opening balance
sheet at 1 January 2014, the date of transition

The standard permits a number of optional exemptions
to this general principle The Company has adopted the
following approach to the key exemptions

Exemptions applied

tFRS 1 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions

from the general requiremenit to apply IFRSs as effective

for December 2015 year end retrospectively The

Company has taken the following exemption

* |FRS 2 Share-based Payment has not been applied
to any equity instruments that were granted on or
before 7 November 2002, nor has it been applied to
equity mstruments granted after 7 November 2002
that vested before 1 January 2005 This treatment
15 consistent with the transitiona! provisions taken
when the Company adopted FRS 20, the UK
equivalent standard

This Appendix explains the principal adjustments made
by the Company in restating its UK GAAP balance
sheet as at 1 January 2014 and its previously published
UK GAAP financal statements for the year ended 31
December 2014
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Company statement of finandal position at 1 January 2014

UK GAAP IFRS IFRS IFRS
reclassifications | remeasurements
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment 1 - - 1
Other financial assets T4 166,862 - 2,110 168,972
Trade and other
receivables T - 80,588 - 80,588
166,863 80,588 2,110 249,561
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other
receivables T 82,384 (82,314) - 70
Current tax recoverable T - 1,725 - 1,725
Cash and cash equivalents 2 - - 2
82,386 {80,589) - 1,797
TOTAL ASSETS 249,249 (1) 2,110 251,358
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings and
overdrafts T2 - 2,871 - 2,871
Trade and other
payables T2 3,297 (2,871) - 426
3,297 - - 3,297
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank loans and
facilities T3 - 9,645 - 9,645
Trade and other
payables T3 206,244 (9,645) - 196,599
Deferred tax T1, T4 - 1 64 63
206,244 m 64 206,307
TOTAL LIABILITIES 209,541 (1) 64 209,604
NET ASSETS 39,708 2,046 41,754
EQUITY
Called up share capital 2,875 - - 2,875
Share premium account 2,631 - - 2,631
Fair value reserve T4 2,048 2,048
Other reserves (5,081) - - (5.081)
Retained earnings 75 39,283 - (2) 39,281
TOTAL EQUITY 39,708 - 2,046 41,754
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Company statement of financial position at 31 December 2014

UK GAAP IFRS IFRS IFRS
reclassifications | remeasurements
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment 2 . - 2
Other financial assets T4 166,862 - 4,466 171,328
Trade and other
recevables T1 - 83,226 - 83,226
166,864 83,226 4,466 254,556
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other
receivables T1 84,890 (84,687) - 203
Current tax recoverable T1 - 1,453 - 1,453
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - - 1
84,891 {83,234) - 1,657
TOTAL ASSETS 251,755 (8) 4,466 256,213
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings and
overdrafts T2 - 3,380 - 3,380
Trade and other
payables 72 4,249 (3,380) - 869
4,249 - - 4,249
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings - - - -
Trade and other
payables 198,995 - - 198,995
Deferred tax 71, T4 - (8) 62 54
198,995 (8) 62 199,049
TOTAL LIAEILITIES 203,244 (8) 62 203,298
NET ASSETS 48,511 4,404 52,915
EQUITY
Called up share capital 2,877 - - 2,877
Share premium account 2,639 - - 2,639
Fair value reserve T4 - - 4,408 4,408
Other reserves (5,074) - - {5.074)
Retained earnings T5 48,069 - (4) 48,065
TOTAL EQUITY 48,511 - 4,404 52,915
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IFRS REMEASUREMENTS

T1 Trade and other receivables

Under IFRS non-current recewvables are disclosed in non-current assets, and current and deferred taxes recoverable

are separately disclosed on the statement of financial position

2014 2013

£000 £000
Trade and other recevables - current (84,687) (82,314)
Current tax recoverable 1,453 1,725
Deferred tax lrability - non-current 8 i
Trade and other receivables - non-current 83,226 80,588

T2 Current tax, borrowings and overdrafts

The current tax hability and borrowings and overdrafts have been reclassified from trade and other payables, to

comply with 1AS 1, as follows

2014 2013
£000 £000
Trade and other payables {3.380) (2,871)
Borrowings and overdrafts 3,380 2,871

T3 Non-current liabilities

The current tax lrability and borrowings and overdrafts have been reclassified from trade and other payables, to

comply with 1A5 1, as follows

2014 2013
£000 £000
Trade and other payables - (9,645)
Bank loans and facilities - 9,645
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IFRS REMEASUREMENTS

TA Listed and unlisted investments

Under UK GAAP, fixed asset investments are held at cost less prowisions for any permanent impairment Under
IFRS 9, available-for-sale financal assets are initially recogmised at cost and subsequently measured at therr fair value
at the balance sheet date The Company’s hsted and unlisted investments are included in the Company statement
of financial position at fair value with any movernents in fair value taken to the statement of comprehensive
Income

2014 2013

£000 £000
Other financial assets 4,466 2,110
Ceficit on fair value debited to income statement 4 2
Deferred taxation 62) (64)
Available for sale reserve (4,408) (2,048)

T5 Retained earnings
Retained earnings have been impacted by deficits on the fair value of listed and unlisted investments

2014 2013
£000 £000
Defiat on fair value debited to income statement 4 2

T6 Short-Term Employee Benefits

The employees of the Company accrue holidays over the financal year of the Company, and the Company has a
policy that all hohday must be taken in the year in which it was earned As the benefit 1s non-accumulating, the
Company does not accrue for any holiday entitfement earned but not taken at the balance sheet date

Accordingly, there 1s no impact from IAS 19 on the Company’s transition to IFRS
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GHVEN that an Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at The Forum, Norwich
on Tuesday 12 April 2016 at noon, to consider and 1f thought fit, pass the following resolutions

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1

THAT the reports of the directors and auditors and the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015 be and are hereby receved

THAT Mr B McCarthy, retinng as a director at this meeting, be re-elected as a director of the Company
THAT Mr D Hill, retinng as a director at this meeting, be re-elected as a director of the Company
THAT Ernst & Young LLP be re-appointed as auditors for the Company at a fee to be fixed by the directors

THAT a final dividend of 5p per share be paid

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

6

8

THAT the Archant 2011 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the ‘2011 LTIP*}, be amended in the manner set out i
Appendix 1 to the Shareholder’s circular, such amendments to be effective from the date on which the Board
of Directors or a duly constituted commuttee thereof adopts such amendments

THAT the rules of the Archant Share Incentive Plan be amended in the manner set out In Appendix 2 to the
Shareholder's circular, such amendments to be effective from the date on which the Board of Directors or a
duly constituted committee thereof adopts such amendments

THAT, subject to the passing of resolution 9, the directors be generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant
to section 551 of the Company Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot ordinary
shares in the capital of the Company to any director and/or any serior employee of the Company or any of
its subsidiary companies who does not hold any shares in the capital of the Company upon such terms as the
directors shall at their complete discretion determine provided that

(@} the maximum aggregate amount of such shares that may be allotted under this authority to any
mdividual 15 shares having an aggregate nominal value of £2,000,

(b} the maximum amount of such shares that may be allotted under this authority 1s shares having an
aggregate nominal value of £20,000,

(©)  the price at which such shares shall be allotted shali be not less than their market value as determined
by the directors taking into account all matenal factors of which they are aware at the time of aflotment, and

(d)  this authorty shall, unless it is {prior to its expiry) duly revoked or vaned or 15 renewed, expire on the date
five years following the date of this resolution, save that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer
or agreement which will or may require such shares to be allotted after such expiry

THAT, subject to the passing of resolution 8, the directors be generally empowered pursuant to section 569
of the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act’) to allot equity secunities (within the meaning of section 560 of the Act)
pursuant to authonty conferred by Resolution 8 as if section 561 of the Act and the pre-emption prowisions
of the Company’s Articles of Assoniation did not apply to such allotment
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING continued

10 THAT the Articles of Association of the Company be altered

{a) by the deletion of article 94 2 and the substitution for it of the following new article 94 2

‘The directors shall procure (but as regards subsidiaries of the Company only In so far as by the exercise of
voting and ather nghts and powers of control exercisable by the Company in relation to its subsidiaries the
directors can procure) that the aggregate principal amount (together with any fixed or minimum premium
payable on final repayment) at any one time outstanding of moneys borrowed or secured by the Company
and its subsidhanes (exclusive of moneys outstanding in respect of borrowings by the Company from any such
subsiciary or by any such subsidiary from another such subsidiary or from the Company) shall not, except with
the prior consent or sanction of the Company In generat meeting, exceed £35,000,000 °, and

(b)  bythedeletion of article 94 4

BY CRDER OF THE BOARD
BG McCarthy

Cirector

8 March 2016

Archant Limited, Prospect House, Rouen Road, Norwich NR1 1RE

Telephone 01603 772772

Facsimile 01603 613276

Email company secretary@archant ¢co uk
Registered number 4126997

NOTES

1

Members are entitled to appaint a proxy to exercise all or any of their nghts to attend and to speak and vote on their behalf
at the Annual General Meeting ('AGM°) A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the AGM provided
that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder A proxy
need not be a shareholder of the Company A proxy form which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy
instructions accompanies this notice If you do not have a proxy form and believe that you should have one, or if you require
additional forms, please contact the Deputy Company Secretary on 01603 772802

To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appointing a proxy must be received by post or (during normal business
hours only) by hand at Equinits Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA no later than noon
on Sunday 10 Apnl 2016

The return of a completed proxy form will not prevent a shareholder attending the AGM and voting in person should they
wish to do so

To be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM (and for the purpose of the determination by the Company of the votes they
may cast), shareholders must be registered in the register of members of the Company at 6pm on Sunday 10 April 2016
{or, in the event of any adjournment, at 6pm on the date which 15 twa days before the time of the adjourned meeting)
Changes o the regisier of members after the relevant deadiine shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person
to attend and vote at the AGM
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USEFUL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND DIVIDEND CALENDAR
12 April  Annual General Meeting

24 March  ‘On record’ date for 2015 final dvidend

15 Aprl Payment of 2015 final dwidend

SHAREHOLDER WEBSITE

Shareholders can find the latest Annual Report, presentations from the previous Annual General
Meeting, useful shareholder nformation {such as the most recent price at which shares traded)
and other presentations/articles which may be of interest at www archant co uk *

REGISTRARS
Shareholders with questions regarding their shareholding should contact the Company’s registrars
Equiniti Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing BN99 6DA

UK 0371 384 2641
Overseas +44 121 415 7047

Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm (UK ume} Monday to Fnday, excluding English public
holidays

Shareholders are also able to manage their shareholding online including  viewing shareholdings,
setting up paper-free share communications and updating records for changes in name or address
through Equiniti’'s website Shareview www shareview co uk *

SHARE DEALING AND SHARE PRICE
Shareholders can buy or sell Archant shares by contacting the Company's stockbrokers (James
Sharp & Co} on 0161 764 4043

Shareholders can also view the current indicative share price and histonc summary of
shares traded by registering with James Sharp & Co Further details are avallable at
archantshares Jamessharp co uk {please note the ‘www’ Is not required) *

CONTACT ARCHANT

If you wish to talk to somebody at Archant with regards to your shareholding or any other
share related matters please contact the Deputy Company Secretary on 01603 772802 or email
company secretary@archant co uk

* A shareholder reference number will be required This can be found on the relevant share
certificate or on the Chairman’s Letter accompanying this Annual Report
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